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I. THE MOTION

1. This report is respectfully fied in support of a motion by KPMG Inc., the liquidator (the

"Liquidator") of the insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company

("Reliance Canada") for an Order:

a) passing the aCCDunts and approving the activities of the Liquidator for the period

January 1, 2008 to September 30, 2009 (the "Period"), as reflected in the financial

statements of Reliance Canada;
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b) approving the professional fees and costs of the Liquidator and of its counsel (the

"Professional Fees") for the Period and the professional fees and costs of the

representative counsel appointed by this Court in respect of a motion for advice

and directions on post-liquidation interest;

c) approving and authorizing a distribution (the "Interest Distribution") in payment

of post-liquidation interest pursuant to ss. 95(2) of the Winding-up and

Restructuring Act ("WURA"), in accordance with this Court's advice and

directions in its Order dated July 14, 2009.

II. OVERVIEW OF THE ESTATE

A. Policy Loss Payments

2. Pursuant to Orders of this Cour, the Liquidator paid on policy loss claims the following

benefits since the commencement of the liquidation of Reliance Canada in 2001:

a) defence costs;

b) valid claims up to the greater of $250,000 or the amount, if any, of the voluntary

compensation payment of the Property and Casualty Insurance Compensation

Corporation ("P ACICC") that may be paid under its Memorandum of Operations;

and

c) valid claims not covered by PACICC, and claims under Reliance Canada's

"Meridian" program, up to $25,000
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(collectively, the "Authorized Policy Payments").

A copy of the Order appointing the Liquidator and authorizing the Policy Payments is

attached as Schedule "A" (the "Appointment Order"). This Court extended the date for

making the Authorized Policy Payments from time to time.

3. This Court further approved, on June 26, 2003, a first interim distribution (the "First

Distribution") of 25% of valid policy loss claims.

4. On September 2, 2004, this Cour approved a second interim distribution (the "Second

Distribution") of 25% of policy loss claims, bringing the cumulative distribution level to

50%.

5. On December 21, 2005, this Court approved a third distribution (the "Third

Distribution") of 15% of policy loss claims, bringing the cumulative distribution level to

65%.

6. On December 15, 2006, this Court approved a fourth distribution (the "Fourth

Distribution") of 15% of policy loss claims, bringing the cumulative distribution level to

80%.

7. On April 8, 2008, this Court approved a fifth distribution (the "Fifth Distribution") of

20% of policy loss claims, bringing the cumulative distribution level to 100%.
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B. Ordinary Claims

8. On December 17,2008, this Court approved a distribution to holders of ordinary creditor

claims of 100%, up to a cumulative total of$100,000.00.

C. Summary

9. The Liquidator therefore now pays policy loss claims and ordinary creditor claims at

100% of the valid and allowed claim amount.

D. Developments Since Last Passing of Accounts

10. The Liquidator has continued to make progress in the administration of the estate. 94

claims with a total value of $10.8 millon have been resolved during the Period. The

collection of reinsurance from some markets continues to prove challenging for

companies in run-off; however, the Liquidator continues to pursue collection of

remsurance. The reinsurance market has generally been difficult, and collection

problems are an industry-wide issue.

11. During the Period, the Liquidator sought and obtained the advice and direction of the

Court on the complex issue of post-liquidation interest by way of a contested proceeding,

with representative counsel for designated classes of stakeholders. Copies of this Court's

Reasons for Decision and Order dated July 14,2009 are attached hereto as Schedules "B"

and "C", respectively.
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E. The Future of the Estate

12. The Liquidator will continue the run-off of Reliance Canada's business in an orderly

manner, dealing with policy liabilities and collection of reinsurance on a commercially

reasonable basis. Given the nature of Reliance Canada's business, a complete run-off

process would be expected to take many years. The consulting actuary retained by the

Liquidator to calculate actuarial liabilities estimates that a run-off would continue to

2019, but that the number of payments will decline going forward.

13. An objective of the Liquidator is to ensure that all policyholders are treated equally. The

Liquidator is analyzing whether to run off the Reliance Canada's business indefinitely,

undertake a marketing program for the policy liabilities, or undertake a call-for-policy-

claims process to assist in bringing closure to the liquidation. As previously reported, the

Liquidator has on a number of occasions pursued marketing programs for the policy

liabilities; however, these efforts did not result in a transaction. Recent market conditions

have not been suitable for implementing another marketing program for the policy

liabilities. In addition, there are costs associated with implementing a marketing process.

The Liquidator expects that it wil likely recommend a call-for-policy-claims process in

2010 in order to assist in the bringing of closure to the liquidation.



- 6 - c?l

III. BACKGROUND

A. General Background

14. Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance") is a property and casualty insurer in the

United States of America, domiciled in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Reliance

carried on business in Canada as a "foreign company", within the meaning of the

Insurance Companies Act, throu gh the Reliance Canada branch. In 2000, Reliance

Canada stopped issuing new policies and began "running off' (winding-down) its

existing business.

15. Reliance was ordered liquidated by Order of the Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania

dated October 3, 2001, under the Pennsylvania Insurance Department Act of 1921. The

Commissioner of Insurance for Pennsylvania was appointed liquidator (the "U.S.

Liquidator").

16. By Orders of this Court made December 3, 2001, the insurance business of Reliance

Canada was ordered wound-up pursuant to the provisions of the WURA, and KPMG Inc.

was appointed provisional liquidator.

17. In the Appointment Order (Schedule "A" hereto), this Court appointed the U.S.

Liquidator and PACICC as inspectors. By Order dated January 30, 2002, this Court

ordered that the Superintendent of Financial Institutions of Canada (the

"Superintendent") may attend meetings of inspectors, be included in the service list, and

attend and be heard in matters before this Court.
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18. The inspectors are not opposing this motion. Also, the Superintendent has advised that it

takes no position on this motion.

B. Reliance Canada's Insurance Business

19. Reliance Canada wrote a very diverse set of policies. Within the classes of liability

insurance that it wrote, Reliance Canada specialized in providing coverage for

professional liability, directors' and officers' liability, pollution and environmental

liability and product liability. While some of Reliance Canada's policies were "claims

made" policies, meaning that claims must be reported during the term of the policy or

within a defined period thereafter, a substantial portion of its policies were "occurrence"

based. These occurrence based policies cover liabilities incurred during the policy period

that may not become manifest for years. This latter business is known as "long tail"

insurance. Many of Reliance Canada's policies had lengthy policy periods.

20. In addition, Reliance Canada acted as a reinsurer for other insurers. The resulting

"assumed reinsurance" is treated as insurance under the Insurance Companies Act, and is

accorded the same priority as policy loss claims under the WURA.

21. In 2000, Reliance Canada voluntarily stopped writing new policies, effectively beginning

the winding down of its business. At the beginning of the liquidation, excluding the

warranty programs, there were 16 policies stil in force, with all other policies having

expired or bêen cancelled, and there were over 1,100 outstanding claims. In addition,

Reliance Canada had "incured but not reported" ("IBNR") claims, primarily on the
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occurence-based policies, for which it may ultimately be put on notice and to which it

would have to respond.

22. As at September 30,2009 there were 145 open claims. All policy terms have expired.

iv. FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE ESTATE

A. Distribution History

23. The First Distribution was based on the financial status of the estate at March 31, 2003.

A copy of the Order of this Court dated June 26, 2003 approving and authorizing the First

Distribution is attached as Schedule "D".

24. The Second Distribution was based on the financial status of the estate at June 30, 2004.

A copy of the Order of this Court dated September 2, 2004 approving and authorizing the

Second Distribution is attached as Schedule "E".

25. The Third Distribution was based on the financial status of the estate at September 30,

2005. A copy of the Order of this Court dated December 21, 2005 approving and

authorizing the Third Distribution is attached as Schedule "F".

26. The Fourth Distribution was based on the financial status of the estate as at

September 30, 2006. A copy of the Order of this Court dated December 15, 2006

approving and authorizing the Fourth Distribution is attached as Schedule "G".
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27. The Fifth Distribution was based on the financial status of the estate as at December 31,

2007. A copy of the Order of this Court dated April 8, 2008 approving and authorizing

the Fifth Distribution is attached as Schedule "H".

28. The distribution on ordinary creditor claims was approved by Order of this Court dated

December 17,2008, a copy of which is attached as Schedule "I".

B. Passing of Accounts

29. This Court has also passed and approved the accounts of the Liquidator for the periods (i)

from the date of the winding-up order to September 30, 2003, as reflected in the Order

attached as Schedule "J", (ii) from October 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004, as reflected in the

Order attached as Schedule "E" (iii) from July 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005, as

reflected in the Order attached as Schedule "F", (iv) from October 1, 2005 to September

30, 2006, as reflected in the Order attached as Schedule "G", and (v) from October 1,

2006 to December 31,2007, as reflected in the Order attached as Schedule "H".

C. Financial Status

30. Attached as Schedule "K" are the unaudited financial statements for the estate as at

September 30, 2009, prepared in a maner consistent with the financial statements before

this Court as at December 31,2007 and previously, and with the same system of internal

controls to safeguard the accuracy and reliability of the financial reporting process.

31. In this Report, the Liquidator wil generally compare the financial status of the estate at

September 30, 2009 to its status at December 31, 2007, the date as of which this Court
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last reviewed the estate's status for the purpose of passing accounts and authorizing a

distribution on policy claims.

32. As noted in previous Reports, a key characteristic of the Reliance Canada claims profie

has been its "lumpiness." That is, a significant number of its policies do not have

frequent claims but, if claims occur, they tend to be severe. As further progress is made

in dealing with the claims and more information becomes available on which to assess

them, the Liquidator adjusts the policy liabilities. In particular, where claims are resolved

for amounts lower than the amounts reserved for them, the policy liabilities are reduced,

and where more information becomes available to indicate a higher exposure than has

been reserved, the policy liabilities are increased. Increases normally also have the effect

of increasing the reinsurance recoverables since these claims are generally reinsured at

significant levels. Accordingly, fluctuations in the estimated level of surlus in the estate

are to be expected, given the volatility ofthe portfolio.

33. During the Period, the Liquidator continued to make substantial progress in the resolution

of claims.

34. The projected estate surplus has decreased from approximately $92.3 milion as at

December 31, 2007 to $91.7 million as at September 30,2009. The principal reasons for

the change in the surplus include: investment income exceeding the costs of the

liquidation; adverse development in total policy liabilities; booking the liability for post-

liquidation interest and reducing the liability for ordinary creditor claims as a result of the

2008 call for ordinary creditor claims.



- 11 -
.;Co

(i) Assets

Vested Assets

35. As noted, Reliance operated within Canada on a branch basis, with the approval of the

Superintendent. The conditions for the Superintendent's approval of the operation of a

branch in Canada include the vesting in trust with the Superintendent of assets having a

prescribed value (the "Vested Assets") and filings, at least annually, of financial

information disclosing both assets for which thé branch is entitled to take credit under the

Insurance Companies Act and liabilities that it is required to report as liabilities of the

branch, also under the Insurance Companies Act.

36. As at September 30, 2009, cash and investments held by Reliance Canada total

approximately $136.0 milion.

Reinsurance

37. The other major asset of Reliance Canada is reinsurance, consisting of:

a) reinsurance covering only the liabilities of Reliance Canada ("Canadian

Reinsurance"); and

b) reinsurance entered into through Reliance's head office ("International

Reinsurance"), which reinsures both Reliance Canada policies as well as policies

written through the U.S. operations.
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38. The percentage of Reliance Canada's case reserves that is reinsured changes over time as

the composition of the case reserves changes. As at December 31, 2007 approximately

42% of Reliance Canada's gross case reserves were reinsured. Of this amount,

approximately 85% was Canadian Reinsurance and 15% was International Reinsurance.

As at September 30, 2009, approximately 47% of Reliance Canada's gross case reserves

were reinsured, approximately 79% of which was Canadian Reinsurance and 21 %

International Reinsurance. These percentages do not reflect estimates for uncollectible

reinsurance due to credit, collection or contractual risk. Over 74.5% of the reinsurance

on the gross reserves as at September 30, 2009 is with reinsurers rated "A" or higher.

39. By September 30, 2009, the Liquidator had collected approximately $103.9 millon in

reinsurance since the beginning of the liquidation, with approximately $14.4 milion of

this during the Period (i.e., since December 31, 2007). Reinsurance receivables (amounts

billed to reinsurers), net of a provision for uncollectible reinsurance, were approximately

$5.0 milion at September 30, 2009, down from $9.6 millon at December 31, 2007.

Reinsurance recoverables (being amounts referable to (i) reported claims not yet biled

and (ii) IBNR, net of a provision for uncollectible reinsurance) were approximately $22.7

milion as at September 30, 2009, down from approximately $22.9 milion at December

31, 2007. (Since September 30, 2009 the Liquidator has collected an additional amount

of reinsurance of approximately $1.3 milion).

Summary

40. As at December 31, 2007, the value of Reliance Canada's assets was

approximately $178.7 milion, and cumulative unpaid claims and related expenses as at
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December 31, 2007 totalled $76.7 milion. As at September 30, 2009, the value of

Reliance Canada's assets was approximately $169.1 millon, and cumulative unpaid

claims and related expenses totalled approximately $64.7 milion. Below is a summary

breakdown for the estate as of September 30, 2009, December 31, 2007 and September

30,2006:

September 30,2009 December 31,2007 Septem ber 30, 2006
(in milions) (in milions) (in milions)

Cash or Investments $136.0 $140.9 $148.8

Reinsurance receivables $27.8 $32.6 $46.9
and recoverables net of
estimate for uncollectible
remsurance

Miscellaneous $5.3 $5.2 $5.7

Total $169.1 $178.7 $201.4

Cumulative unpaid claims
and related expenses

$64.7 $76.7 $112.5

(ii) Liabilties

41. As at December 31, 2007, the estimated value of the policy liabilities was $77.5 milion.

As at September 30, 2009, the estimated value was $70.5 millon, determined as

described in more detail below.

42. The Liquidator has not undertaken a call-for-policy loss claims to date. However, the

Liquidator wil likely be recommending a call-for-claims process in 2010. In the absence
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of a call-for-policy loss claims, the Liquidator has relied on, and continues to rely on,

actuarial projections to reach a view as to the total claims exposure of the estate.

Policy Loss Claims

43. There are basically three categories of policy loss claims:

a) claims that are settled or otherwise resolved. Since the Fifth Distribution, the

Liquidator has resolved approximately 94 claims having a total approximate value

of $10.8 millon. As at September 30, 2009, approximately 18,400 policy loss

claims, with a total value of approximately $141.2 million have been resolved,

through settlement or otherwise, since the beginning of the liquidation. These

have all been paid in full;

b) claims that have been reported but not yet resolved (the "Reported Claims"). As

at September 30, 2009, there were 145 Reported Claims outstanding, down from

208 as at December 31, 2007, with outstanding gross case reserves increased by

approximately $4.8 million, from approximately $29.9 millon to $34.7 million.

(Case reserves are adjusted as additional information on the estimated amount of a

claim becomes known during the course of its settlement. As discussed earlier,

this change reflects the volatility and "lumpiness" of Reliance Canada's

portfolio); and

c) the provision for IBNR and for development in Reported Claims.
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Non-Booked Claims

44. As described in previous reports, there is the potential that certain claims that were not

reported in the books of Reliance Canada may be valid claims against Reliance Canada

("Non-Booked Claims"). The Non-Booked Claims would arise from policies written

outside Canada, and which were not reported in the books of Reliance Canada.

45. The U.S. Liquidator agreed to advise the Liquidator if any Non-Booked Claims are

identified in the liquidation of Reliance, including as a result of the u.s. call-for-claims

that expired on December 31, 2003. (Over the years of the liquidation, only a small

number of potentially Non-Booked Claims have been identified, and only one was

accepted, by way of settlement, as in part a claim in the Canadian estate.)

46. Based on the information available, the Liquidator is of the view that the total value of

the Non-Booked Claims, if any, would be immaterial and would not have an impact on

the estate's ability to pay the proposed Interest Distribution.

47. Should a claimant assert a Non-Booked Claim that cannot be resolved, the Liquidator

wil be seeking the directions of this Court with respect to the bringing forward of any

claim of a party who believes they have a Non-Booked Claim that can properly be

asserted against Reliance Canada, and with respect to whether the alleged Non-Booked

Claim should be allowed in the Canadian estate.
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Liabilty Claims Projection Process

48. The Liquidator has applied the same methodology in projecting the policy liabilities for

the purpose of this Report as for the Fifth Distribution. The Liquidator has undertaken an

extensive review of the policy liabilities, including retaining the services of the

consulting actuary who acted for Reliance Canada before it was ordered to be wound-up.

Representatives of the U.S. Liquidator have also reviewed the actuarial projections as of

June 30,2009, and the case reserves on which there is significant volatility.

49. Actuarial projections typically consider:

a) the current level of reserves;

b) the history of claims development;

c) the nature of the liabilities underwitten and the terms of the policies;

d) industry experience and current developments with respect to similar kinds of

policies and liabilities; and

e) the potential for adverse deviation.

50. Actuaries then reach a view as to the total policy liabilities to which the insurer wil be

exposed, including a provision for unreported claims and upward adjustment for reported

claims (IBNR). While the actuaries generally provide a single best estimate, there is

clearly a range for valuing the total liabilities, depending on the degree of certainty to be

achieved.
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51. The Liquidator instructed the actuaries to confirm their best estimate of the policy

liabilities in accordance with accepted actuarial standards of practice except that

discounts to reflect the time value of money should not be used. The Liquidator then

carefully reviewed the analysis underlying the actuarial estimates in reaching the estimate

of $70.5 milion for policy liabilities as at September 30, 2009.

V. MAJOR ACTIVITIES OF THE LIQUIDATOR

A. Administration

52. On being appointed, the Liquidator considered Reliance Canada's complex array of

claims and coverage, and the seniority and. reputation of its employees, and consulted

with the u.s. Liquidator and P ACICC. The Liquidator determined that the best interests

of the estate would be served by maintaining continuity, to the extent possible, through

retaining existing Reliance Canada staff, and that this would result in cost savings. At the

beginning of the liquidation there were 17 employees. As at September 30, 2009, six

employees remained (two being part-time).

53. Reliance Canada employees perform day-to-day administration, including instructing

defence counsel and outside adjusters, dealing with counsel on coverage issues,

administering reinsurance collections, performing accounting and financial reporting with

respect to claims and reinsurance functions, and liaising with PACICC and staff of the

U.S. estate.
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54. The Liquidator maintains responsibility for the conduct of the liquidation. The

Liquidator is responsible for all strategic initiatives and major decisions and, as

appropriate, is involved in supervising and augmenting, where necessary, the day-to-day

activities performed by former Reliance Canada employees.

55. The Liquidator performs the functions specific to the liquidation, including the

development of policies and procedures for claims handling and authorities, the

institution of internal controls, reporting to the Court and stakeholders, supervising and

coordinating legal counsel, monitoring developments in the U.S. liquidation, and

providing insureds with information. Additionally, the Liquidator has sole control over

all cash and investments of Reliance Canada and signs all cheques. The Liquidator

reviews all claims decisions involving claims that meet criteria established in co-

operation with PACICC and the U.S. Liquidator, performs the financial reporting, is

actively involved in reinsurance collections, makes all investment decisions, instructs and

consults with the actuary, and assists on as as-needed basis with the process of resolving

claims. A further summary of the Liquidator's activities is set out below.

B. Third Party Administrators

56. Reliance Canada also had arrangements with third party administrators who were

responsible for the administration of claims in a number of programs, the major ones

including:

a) Meridian, an automobile warranty program;
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b) Groupe PPP, a financial guarantee program underwitten in the U.S., covering

automobile dealers in Quebec;

c) Gap Program, a financial warranty program;

d) Family Program, a personal lines program in British Columbia; and

e) Environmental Program, administered by ECS Inc. in the U.S.

57. Each of the programs is unique in respect of the volume, magnitude and complexity of its

claims, and with respect to the discretion accorded the third party administrators. In each

case, the Liquidator reviewed the program and the nature of the relationship between the

administrator and Reliance Canada. In assessing the continued use of the third party

administrators, the Liquidator considered their cost, the potential prejudice if the

administration were disrupted and the quality of their work. As previously reported, the

Liquidator determined that it was appropriate to maintain the relationships, but

introduced additional controls and reporting requirements, as it considered necessary, and

regularly reviews the status of the administrations. The Meridian, Groupe PPP and Gap

Programs all expired prior to the Period.

C. Stakeholders

PACICC

58. The Liquidator entered into a loan and services agreement with PACICC on December 3,

2001, approved by this Court in the Appointment Order. Pursuant to the loan and service
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agreement, the loan terminated upon the cumulative distribution on policy claims

reaching 100%.

59. The Liquidator regularly consults with PACICC, which remains an Inspector, concerning

the progress of the estate.

us. Liquidator

60. By virtue ofss. 161(9) of the Winding-up and Restructuring Act, the U.S. Liquidator has

an on-going interest in the administration of Reliance Canada. Furthermore, before the

liquidation, Reliance Canada depended on Reliance for many services, including

information services and technology. In addition, Reliance underwrote insurance policies

which were later allocated to Reliance Canada, entered into reinsurance treaties which

also covered Reliance Canada liabilties, collected reinsurance proceeds on its behalf, and

had ultimate decision-making power for setting Reliance Canada's claims reserves and

for settlements.

61. Accordingly, to prevent disruption to the administration of Reliance Canada and in

recognition of the U.S. Liquidator's interest in the Canadian estate, the U.S. Liquidator,

the Superintendent and the Liquidator entered into a protocol, dated November 28,2001,

providing for cooperation with respect to use of information systems, collection of

reinsurance, administration of claims, and the sale process for the policy liabilities. The

protocol remains in force and close co-operation between the two Liquidators has

continued. However, the Liquidator remains cognizant at all times of balancing the

interests of all stakeholders.
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Policyholders

62. The Liquidator has been in regular contact with policyholders, third part claimants and

relevant counsel concerning the financial status of the estate, particularly with respect to

both. the timing and quantu of distributions. The Liquidator maintains an informative

website for the convenience of policyholders and other stakeholders.

Ordinary Creditors

63. As referenced above, this Court authorized (up to a certain total) payment at 100% of

ordinary creditor claims. To date, only one such claim has been filed, in a nominal

amount, and it was allowed and paid.

D. Reinsurers

64. With respect to its efforts to collect reinsurance proceeds, the Liquidator has also been in

regular contact with reinsurers, either directly, through Reliance or through reinsurance

brokers.

65. Through extensive efforts, including meetings with U.K. remsurers m London, the

Liquidator has continued to make progress in reinsurance collections. This is evidenced

by the increase in reinsurance collections discussed in this Report. However, the

Liquidator continues to expend significant effort in the collection of reinsurance, so as to

maximize the ongoing collection of reinsurance recoveries. An ongoing issue m

reinsurance collections is the inter-relationship between the Canada and U.S. estates.
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E. Post-liquidation Interest Motion

66. As mentioned above, during the Period the Liquidator sought the advice and direction of

this Court with respect to its obligations regarding "post-liquidation interest".

67. As it was apparent that there would be a surplus in the estate of Reliance Canada after

payment of the full principal amount of policy loss claims and ordinary creditor claims,

the issue arose whether the surplus was to be applied to post-liquidation interest on

claims in the Reliance Canada estate, and, if so, on what claims, at what rate, and on what

methodology. The issue further arose whether such post-liquidation interest was payable

in priority to any ultimate release of excess assets to the u.s. Liquidator under Par III of

the WURA, notwithstanding the deficit in the Reliance liquidation of several bilion

dollars such that policy loss claims there wil receive dividends at significantly less than

100%.

68. The issue was a complex one, without judicial precedent. Although ss. 95(2) in Part I of

the WURA provides for post-liquidation interest in the case of a surlus, the WURA is not

explicit whether that provision applies to the liquidation of an insurance company or a

branch of a foreign insurance company under Part III (which is silent on the issue), let

alone on which types of claims it might apply, what methodology applies, and whether it

creates an entitlement in priority to the release of assets to the foreign head office in the

case of a branch insurance company. Further, there was an issue whether, if ss. 95(2) did
.

not apply, the common law principles regarding post-liquidation interest would apply

and, if so, to what types of claims, what methodology applies, and whether common-law
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interest is payable in priority to the ultimate release of assets to the foreign head office

under Part III of the WURA.

69. The Liquidator, after considerable analysis, made a recommendation to the Court that the

proper construction of the WURA is that ss. 95(2) does apply to certain claims in this

case, and as to how it applies. The issues were fully discussed with the u.s. Liquidator,

and the U.S. Liquidator indicated that it did not agree, at least in part, with the

Liquidator's position.

70. As there were also certain arguments that could be made on behalf of classes of

claimants, which arguments were not necessarily consistent with the Liquidator's or the

u.s. Liquidator's positions, the Liquidator accordingly sought preliminary directions for

the appointment of representative counsel for those classes who may have had an interest

in advancing -positions different from those of the Liquidator or the u.s. Liquidator on

the issues.

71. By its Order made January 29, 2009 (the "Preliminary Directions Order"), a copy of

which is attached as Schedule "L", this Court established two classes of claimants and

appointed corresponding representative counsel as follows:

(i) The class of "Under-limits Claimants" - being those claimants of Reliance

Canada whose policy loss claims the Liquidator was able to pay-in-full as they

were settled and allowed (by virte of the Authorized Policy Payment and/or the

100% distribution level have been reached).

- Representative counsel: Elizabeth Pilon; and
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(ii) The class of "Over-limits Claimants" - being the claimants of Reliance Canada

whose (i) policy loss claims (a) were not paid in full as their policy loss claims

were settled and allowed, or (b) were or are in litigation and ultimately

determined in favour of the claimant and would, but for the winding-up, have

been eligible for pre-judgment interest for the period following commencement of

the winding-up, or (ii) whose ordinary creditor claims were payable at the

commencement of the winding-up and were not paid.

- Representative counsel - James Grout.

72. The Preliminary Directions Order also set out publication and service directions to ensure

widespread notice of the post-liquidation interest motion.

73. The post-liquidation interest motion was framed as four questions for the advice and

direction of the Court:

Question 1: Does subsection 95(2) of the Winding-up and Restructuring Act
apply to the winding-up of Reliance Canada, so that interest on
allowed claims in the winding-up of Reliance Canada is payable
pursuant to subsection 95(2), in the case where there is a surplus,
in priority to any release to Reliance Insurance Company

(represented by the U.S. Liquidator) of the balance of any assets
that the Court may ultimately approve under subsection 161(10) of
the Winding-up and Restructuring Act?

Question 2: If the answer to Question 1 is yes, on what basis is post-liquidation
interest to be determined? That is, on which type of claims is it
payable, at what rate, is it simple or compounded, from what
date(s) does it ru, and are interim payments that were made on
claims to be first applied toward the interest payable on the claim
and then to the principal amount of the claim or first toward the
principal amount of the claim?

Question 3: If the answer to Question 1 is no, is interest payable in the
winding-up of Reliance Canada on allowed claims on some basis
other than subsection 95(2) of the Winding-up and Restructuring
Act, in the case where there is a surlus, in priority to any release
to Reliance Insurance Company of the balance of any assets that
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the Cour may approve under subsection 161(10) of the
Winding-up and Restructuring Act?

If the answer to Question 1 is no, and the answer to Question 3 is
yes, on what basis is post-liquidation interest to be determined?

74. The Liquidator's position and recommended answers on the questions were:

Question 1:

Question 2:

Question 3-4:

Yes.

The proper construction and application of subsection 95(2) results
in: (i) payment of post-liquidation interest to the Over-limits
Claimants, but not to the Under-limits Claimants, (ii) calculated as
simple interest (i.e., not compounded), at an annual rate of 5%, on
the unpaid portion of each Over-limits Claimant's allowed claim
from the time such claim was settled and allowed (or, (a) in the
case of a Disputed Claim, from the time since the commencement
of the winding-up that it would have been eligible for pre-
judgment interest, but for the winding-up, but not earlier than the
commencement of the winding-up, and (b) in the case of an
ordinary creditor claim that was already payable as of the

commencement of the winding-up, from the commencement of the
winding-up) until such portion was paid.

The Liquidator further recommended that any payments made to
Over-limits Claimants by way of Interim Dividend Payments
and/or Authorized Policy Payments during the course of the

winding-up are to be treated as being allocated first toward any
post-liquidation interest payable on the claim of an Over-limits
Claimant, and then to the principal portion of such claim.

The recommended answers above would render answers to
questions 3-4 not necessary, though the Liquidator through its
counsel would make any appropriate submissions on these
questions in its factum and at the hearing.

75. By his Reasons issued July 14, 2009 (Schedule "B"), Justice Campbell held that the

questions should be answered as recommended by the Liquidator.
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F. Summary of Activities

76. In summary, the Liquidator's major activities for the Period included:

a) Claims adjudication and administration including:

(i) overseeing payment of defence and adjustment costs;

(ii) overseeing a comprehensive review of all claims including estimating

range of possible outcomes;

(iii) engaging in extensive discussions with policyholders, claimants and their

counsel concerning the estate, including its financial status;

(iv) settling or otherwise resolving, and paying approximately 94 claims

having a value of approximately $10.8 milion; and

(v) obtaining the post-liquidation interest determination;

b) Reinsurance, including:

(i) reconciling accounts;

(ii) enforcing liquidation clauses;

(iii) entering into agreements with reinsurers and the U.S. Liquidator to

facilitate collection of both the Canadian and the International

Reinsurance; and

(iv) collecting receivables, including direct communication with remsurers,

several visits with U.K. reinsurers in London, and cooperative efforts with

the U.S. Liquidator;

c) reviewing and amending as necessary the investment policy and managmg

investments in consultation with its investment manager;
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d) reporting regularly to PACICC and the u.s. Liquidator;

e) performing extensive review of policy liabilities as at June 30, 2009;

f) maintaining the external website; and

g) continuing monitoring of the U.S. liquidation, and discussions with the U.S.

Liquidator, with respect to cross-border issues and other matters that impact the

Canadian estate, including the significant issues with respect to reinsurance

collections.

VI. LIQUIDATOR'S ACCOUNTS AND PROFESSIONAL FEES

A. Financial Statements

77. As in the past, the Liquidator does not consider that a traditional statement of receipts and

disbursements would provide a meaningful and informative reflection of the financial

position of the estate. The Liquidator has therefore prepared the financial statements

(unaudited), attached as Schedule "K".

78. The financial statements have been prepared in a manner consistent with the statements

approved previously by this Court. The Liquidator maintains a system of internal

controls to safeguard the accuracy and the reliability of the financial reporting process.
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B. Professional Fees

79. The Liquidator retains professional advisors to assist in the administration of the

liquidation from time to time. The Liquidator is familiar with the services provided by

each of the professional advisors and has reviewed their invoices. Detailed invoices were

timely received and carefully reviewed in detail by senior administrative and

management level members of the Liquidator's staff. The invoices were reviewed for

accuracy, adequate detailed information describing the work performed and by whom,

the time spent and when it was spent, the rate and amount biled, possible redundant

charges, reasonableness and overall compliance with the terms of retention.

Clarifications and adjustments of items included in the invoices were requested where it

appeared appropriate.

80. The Liquidator believes that the Professional Fees of its advisors are proper, fair and

reasonable and were incured in furtherance of the best interests of the estate of Reliance

Canada.

Goodmans LLP

81. Goodmans LLP ("Goodmans") has acted as counsel to the Liquidator from the

commencement of the liquidation and has acted or advised on all matters described in this

report. The Liquidator is familar with their services and has reviewed their invoices in

detail and with the care described above.
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82. At the commencement of the liquidation, Goodmans agreed to a discount from its then

current market rates of approximately 15% to 20%, with rates not to be increased for one

year. In fact, rates were not increased for the first two years of the liquidation, but were

raised by 4.79%, effective October 1, 2003, reflecting the change in the Consumer Price

Index over the two year period, and a further 5.6% effective January 1, 2008, reflecting

the change in the Consumer Price Index from January 1, 2006. Effective July 1, 2008,

rates were increased to 90% of current market rates as they are set from time to time, as a

result of reaching the 100% distribution leveL. The discount from Goodmans' curent

market rates is approximately 10%.

83. Attached as Schedules "M", "N" and "0", respectively, are:

a) a summary invoice from Goodmans to the Liquidator for the Period;

b) a sumary of the hours and average hourly rates of each of Goodmans' personnel

who dedicated more than 30 hours to the estate for the Period; and

c) a brief description of the areas of concentration of each of Goodmans' personnel

who dedicated more than 30 hours to the estate for the Period.

84. Detailed supporting records, including time sheets, are available should this Court wish

them produced. An affdavit attesting to the accuracy of the fees and disbursements is

also being filed.
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85. The Liquidator is satisfied that Goodmans' fees are proper, fair and reasonable, that time

was appropriately spent and that Goodmans' fees were incurred in furtherance of the best

interests of the estate.

KPMGlnc.

86. The Liquidator has kept careful and detailed records of all time spent by Liquidator

personnel on the estate. The Liquidator has instituted internal controls to ensure no

redundant or inappropriate charges are made. The Liquidator applied the same standard

for review to its accounts as to accounts of other professionals, described above. As

discussed above, the Liquidator maximized effciency and reduced costs by retaining

former Reliance Canada employees and third party administrators where prudent and

appropriate.

87. At the commencement of the liquidation, the Liquidator agreed to a discount from its

then current market rates of approximately 15% to 20%, with rates not to be increased for

one year. In fact, rates were not increased for the first two years of the liquidation, but

were raised by 4.79%, effective October 1, 2003, and an additional 2.4% effective

October 1, 2004, 3.4% effective October 1, 2005, 3% effective October 1, 2006, and

2.6% effective October 1, 2007, reflecting the changes in the Consumer Price Index.

Effective July 1,2008, rates were increased to 90% of current market rates as they are set

from time to time, as a result of reaching the 100% distribution leveL. The discount from

current market rates is approximately 10%.
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88. Attached as Schedules "P", "Q" and "R", respectively, are:

a) an invoice from the Liquidator to the estate for the Period;

b) a summary of the hours and average hourly rates of each of the Liquidator's

personnel who dedicated more than 30 hours to the estate for the Period; and

c) a brief description ofthe areas of concentration of each of such of the Liquidator's

personnel for the Period.

89. Detailed supporting records, including time sheets, are available should this Court wish

them produced. An affdavit attesting to the accuracy of the fees and disbursements is

also being filed.

90. The Liquidator respectfully requests that this Court pass the accounts of the Liquidator,

as reflected in the financial statements, and approve the Professional Fees.

C. Representative Counsel

91. In respect of the post-liquidation interest motion, the Preliminary Directions Order

(Schedule "L") provided that the solicitor and client accounts of the two representative

counsel shall be assessed by this Court, and that the reasonable remuneration, costs and

expenses of the representative counsel shall be a cost and expense ofthe winding-up.

92. In his Honour's Reasons of July 14, 2009 (Schedule "B"), Justice Campbell expressly

recognized the assistance of all counsel, especially the representative counseL.
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93. The representative counsels' accounts are attached as Schedules "S" and "T" hereto. The

Liquidator and its counsel have reviewed these accounts and are satisfied that they are

fair and reasonable.

VII. PROPOSED INTEREST DISTRIBUTION

A. Overview

94. As discussed above, by Order dated July 14, 2009, this Court provided its advice and

directions with respect to the entitlement to post-liquidation interest and the methodology

to be applied under subsection 95(2) of the WURA. The Court also confirmed that this

entitlement takes priority to any ultimate release of the balance of any assets to the U.S.

Liquidator that the Court may ultimately authorize.

B. Approach to Proposed Interest Distribution

95. The Liquidator has calculated the proposed Interest Distribution in accordance with the

advice and directions of the Court. As at December 31, 2009, the total Interest

Distribution on this basis wil be approximately $5.2 milion.

96. In recommending the Interest Distribution, as with all the previous distributions, the

Liquidator has introduced further elements of conservatism, beyond those in the loss

projection methodology, for purposes of reaching its recommendations, including:

a) all costs for the completion of the liquidation have been estimated on a very

conservative basis;
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b) reserves have been taken for certain policies at their full limits, and

notwithstanding that claims have not been asserted at limits; and

c) to deal with the three main remaining uncertainties in the estate - reinsurance;

Non~Booked Claims and IBNR - in this distribution the Liquidator is ascribing

bad debt provisions to reinsurance that has not been collected and is building into

the assumptions conservative values for the Non-Booked Claims and IBNR.

97. The Liquidator has also considered the fact that the proposed Interest Distribution wil be

a final, "one-time" distribution, with the exception of the Over-limits Claimants whose

policy loss claims were or are in litigation and ultimately determined in favour of the

claimant and would, but for the winding-up have been eligible for pre-judgment interest

for the period following commencement of the winding-up.

98. The Liquidator considers that it is appropriate to achieve finality and certainty with

respect to the claims that are eligible for post-liquidation interest and to eliminate the

ongoing costs and administration of this element to the estate.

99. Based on the foregoing, and the actuarial projections of the estate's total claims exposure,

referenced earlier in this Report, the Liquidator recommends authorization for the Interest

Distribution at this time. The Liquidator is of the view that there is no realistic scenario

under which this distribution would prejudice any party.
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VIII. RECOMMENDATIONS

100. In light of the foregoing, the Liquidator therefore respectfully recommends that this Court

approve the Interest Distribution, to be calculated in accordance with Justice Campbell's

Order made July 14,2009, and grant the further relief sought herein.

ALL OF WHICH is RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

KPMG INC., the Liquidator of Reliance Insurance
Company - nadian Branch

Per:

\5788727
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Schedule "A"

Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURLE ) MONDAY THE 3RD DAY
)
) OF DECEMBER, 2001
)
)

MR. JUSTICE FAREY

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURACE COMPAN

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.C. 1991, C.47, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, RS.C. 1985, C.W-ll, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNY GENERA OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURCE COMPAN

Respondent

ORDER

THIS APPLICATION made by the Applicant was heard this day without a 
jur at

Toronto, in the presence of counsel for the Applicant, for the Respondent, for KPMG mc., and

for the Propert and Casualty Insurance Compensation Corporation ("P ACICC"), no one

opposmg.
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ON READING the Notice of Application and the evidence fied by the paries,

and on hearng submissions of counsel for the paries:

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of the Notice of Application and the

materials herein be and it is hereby good and sufficient notice thereof and that any fuher service

of the Notice of Application and materials herein be and it is hereby dispensed with.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that KPMG Inc. be and is hereby appointed as

provisional liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the insurance business in Canada of the Respondent,

including the assets in Canada of the Respondent, together with its other assets held in Canada

under the control of its chief agent, including, without limitation, all amounts received or

receivable in respect of its insurance business in Canada ("Reliance (Canada)").

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the giving of securty by the Liquidator upon its

appointment as liquidator be dispensed with.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that all moneys belonging to Reliance (Canada) received

by or on behalf of the Liquidator and its agents shall be paid into a charered ban to the account

of the Liquidator immediately after the receipt thereof and an account or accounts shall be

opened imediately, provided, however, that the Liquidator shall have the discretion to deposit

fuds to and use the bank accounts curently in the name of or operated by Reliance (Canada).

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that any cheques or drafts in respect of policies, issued

by Reliance (Canada) prior to the makg of the winding-up order herein and which are

presented for payment thereafter, may be paid out ofthe estate and effects of Reliance (Canada).
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6. THIS COURT ORDERS that the amount recoverable from, due or owed by any

reinsurer to Reliance (Canada) shall be paid to the Liquidator and shall not be reduced as a result

of this Order or the winding-up order, notwithstanding any terms or contractual agreement to the

contrary, and that any payment made directly by a reinsurer to an insured or other creditor or

claimant of Reliance (Canada) or Reliance Insurance Company shall not diminish or reduce or

affect such reinsurer's obligation to Reliance (Canada).

7. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is authorized to cure such defaults

and effect such arangements as may be required to reinstate such reinsurance affecting the

operations of Reliance (Canada), as the Liquidator deems to be in the interest and for the

protection of policyholders, creditors and claimants of Reliance (Canada).

8. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator may pay all valid policyholder

claims, including claims in respect of unearned premiums, to the amount of $25,000 or the

amount, ifany, of the voluntary còmpensation payment of PAC ICC which may be paid under the

terms of its Memorandum of Operations (the "PACICC Voluntary Compensation Payment")

until Apri130, 2002 or such later date as this Cour may order, subject to paragraph 9 hereof, and

such payments shall be deemed for all puroses to have been payments made on account of

claims in the course of the liquidation of Reliance (Canada).

9. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator may pay all valid claims including

claims in respect of uneared premiums under the Meridian and other warranty and surety

programs to the amount of $5,000 or the amount, if any, of the PACICC VolÙltary

Compensation Payment until Januar 31, 2002 or such later date as this Court may order, and

such payments shall be deemed for all puroses to have been payments made on account of

claims in the course ofthe liquidation of Reliance (Canada).
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10. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator may, after consultation with the

Inspectors, make such other payments as the Liquidator in the Liquidator's discretion deems

advisable in the circumstances in respect of policies of Reliance (Canada) and such payments

shall be deemed for all puroses to have been payments made on account of claims in the course

ofthe liquidation of Reliance (Canada).

11. THIS COURT ORDERS that in addition to the payments referred to in

paragraphs 8 and 10, until April 30, 2002 or such later date as this Court may order, the

Liquidator may pay and continue to pay all reasonable legal and other costs, incurred to and

including April 30, 2002, which Reliance (Canada) is obligated to pay for defending any

insureds against losses under Reliance (Canada)'s policies in accordance with the applicable

policy ("Defence Costs"), subject to the applicable terms and limits of such policies. For greater

certainty, all payments of Defence Costs shall be deemed for all purposes to have been payments

made on account of claims in the course of the liquidation of Reliance (Canada) and to form par

of the expenses of the liquidation as a first charge on the assets of the estate. However, if the

applicable policy so provides, such payments shall be taken into account in determinig the

amount which would otherwise be distrbuted to the respective policyholders and claimants, or

otherwise paid on account of Defence Costs, as the case may be, at such time as any further

distrbutions or similar arangements are made in respect of their policies.

12. THIS COURT ORDERS that any payments made by the Liquidator pursuant to

paragraphs 5, 8, 9, 10 and 11 hereof, other than payments made pursuant to clerical errors (the

"Payments") :

(a) shall be deemed to be payments made on account of claims in the liquidation of

Reliance (Canada) and shall be deducted from the amount which would otherwise
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be distrbuted at such time as further distributions or similar arrangements are

made in respect of such claims;

(b) shall be deemed to have been made in accordance with this Order;

(c) in respect of any policy shall not obligate the Liquidator to make fuher payments

in respect thereof; and

(d) which may have exceeded the ultimate amount which the Liquidator determnes is

available for distribution to the respective policyholders and claimants, or

available for payment of Defence Costs, as the case may be, (collectively, the

"Overpayments") shall be deemed not to be preferences and shall not be

repayable by the recipients or policyholders.

Neither the Liquidator nor the Liquidator's agents, advisers or employees shall be liable to any

person in respect of the Overpayments.

13. THIS COURT ORDERS that PACICC, which shall designate from time to time

one or more persons as its representative, and the Insurance Commissioner of the

Comioñ~ealth of Pennsylvana in her capacity as Liquidator of the Respondent or her designee

are appointed inspectors (collectively the "Inspectors") to assist and advise the Liquidator in the

winding-up of Reliance (Canada).

14. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Inspectors may apply to this Court on motion

for directions concernng any matter relating to the liquidation of Reliance (Canada).

15. THIS COURT ORDERS that each claim in respect of which PACICC makes a

PACICC Voluntar Compensation Payment (a "Compensated Claim") shall be deemed to be and
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shall hereby be assigned in its entirety to P ACICC without specific assignent or further steps

required. P ACICC shall be entitled to assert each Compensated Claim in the Liquidation.

Reliance (Canada) is hereby deemed to have acquiesced to the assignent of Compensated

Claims provided for herein and to have received a copy of the deed of assignent. PACICC and

the Liquidator shall be deemed to be and shall hereby be released and forever discharged from

any and all claims, actions, losses and liabilities which any person has or may have at present or

in the future with respect to each Compensated Claim.

16. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph 15, the

Liquidator may make funds in the estate available to P ACICC from time to time to be used by

P ACICC to make P ACICC Voluntar Compensation Payments pursuant to the terms and

conditions of the loan and services agreement made effective as of the date hereof between the

Liquidator and P ACICC, which is hereby approved.

17. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is authorised and empowered to act

as administrator of insurance coverage on behalf of third parties who assume all or par of the

insurance risk, and to be paid the fees eared by Reliance (Canada), pursuant to the terms of the

contracts between Reliance (Canada) and such thrd paries.

18. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is entitled fortwith to possession of

all of Reliance (Canada)'s books, accounts, securities, documents, papers, computer programs

and data, registers and records of any kind ("Books and Records") and that Reliance (Canada),

its present and former shareholders, directors, officers, employees, salespeople and agents,

accountants, auditors, solicitors, trustees, and every person having knowledge of this Order and

. having possession or control of such Books and Records, do forthwith deliver over to the

Liquidator or to the Liquidator's agent all such Books and Records.
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19. THIS COURT ORDERS that all persons, including, without limitation,

employees, brokers, legal counsel, insurance agents, third par administrators, or salespeople

having access to or knowledge of the affairs of Reliance (Canada) do co-operate with the

Liquidator in providing information or documents necessar or incidental to the liquidation of

Reliance (Canada).

20. THIS COURT ORDERS that any entity which has custody or control of any data

processing information and records (including but not limited to source documents, all types of

electronically stored information, master tapes or any other recorded information) relating to

Reliance (Canada), shall transfer custody and control of such records in a form readable by the

Liquidator to the Liquidator as of the date of this Order, unless instructed to the contrar by the

Liquidator.

21. THIS COURT ORDERS that any entity fushing claims processing or data

processing services to Reliance (Canada) shall maintain such services and transfer any such

accounts to the Liquidator as of the date of this Order, unless instructed to the contrary by the

Liquidator.

22. THIS COURT ORDERS that Reliance (Canada) and its Chief Agent, offcers,

trstees, employees, consultants, agents, and legal counsel shall: surender peacefully to the

Liquidator the premises where Reliance (Canada) conducts its business; delíver all keys or

access codes thereto and to any safe deposit boxes; advise the Liquidator of the combinations or

access codes of any safe or safekeeping devices of Reliance (Canada) or any password or

authonzation code or access code required for access to data processing equipment; and shall

deliver and surrender peacefully to the Liquidator all of the assets, books, records, files, credit

cards, and other property of Reliance (Canada) in their possession or control, wherever located,
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and otherwise advise and cooperate with the Liquidator in identifying and locating any of the

foregoing.

23. THIS COURT ORDERS that all persons, firms, corporations and other entities

having agreements, whether wrtten or oral, with Reliance (Canada) for the supply of goods or

services, be and they are hereby enjoined from terminating, accelerating, suspending, modifyng,

determining or cancelling such agreements without the wrtten consent of the Liquidator or leave

of this Court, and that all such paries shall continue to comply with their obligations under such

agreements or otherwise on terms currently provided so long as the Liquidator pays the normal

prices or charges for such goods or services incurred after the date of this Order in accordance

with usual payment terms or as may hereafter be negotiated by the Liquidator from tie to time.

24. THIS COURT ORDERS that all persons, firms, corporations and other entities be

and they are hereby enjoined from distubing or interferig with the occupation, possession or

use by the Liquidator of any premises occupied or leased by Reliance (Canada) as at November

8,2001 except upon fuher Order of this Cour. From November 8, 2001 and for the period of

time that the Liquidator occupies any leased premises, the Liquidator shall pay occupation rent to

each lessor based upon the regular monthly base rent that was previously paid by Reliance

(Canada) in respect of the premises so occupied or as may hereafter be negotiated by the

Liquidator from time to time.

25. THIS COURT ORDERS that all persons, fis, corporations and other entities be

and they are hereby enjoined from distubing or interfering with computer softare, hardware,

support and data services or with utility services, including, but not limited to, the fushig of

oil, gas, heat, electrcity, water, telephone service (including at present telephone numbers used

by Reliance (Canada)) or any other utilities oflike kind fushed to Reliance (Canada) and they
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are hereby enjoined from discontinuing or altering any such utilities or services to the Liquidator

except upon further order of this Cour, so long as the Liquidator pays the normal prices or

charges for such goods and services incurredafier November 8,2001 as the same become due in

accordance with usual payment terms or as may hereafter be negotiated by the Liquidator from

time to time.

26. THIS COURT ORDERS that, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,

and except upon further order of this Cour having been obtained on at least 7 days' notice to the

Liquidator:

(a) all persons, firms, corporations and other entities be and they are hereby

restrained from terminating, cancelling or otherwise withdrawing any licences,

permits, approvals or consents with respect to or in connection with Reliance

(Canada) as they were on 
November 8,2001;

(b) any and all proceedings or steps taken or that may be taken, wheresoever taken,

by any person, firm, corporation or entity, including, without limitation, any of

the policyholders or creditors of Reliance (Canada), suppliers, co-insurers,

reinsurers, contracting paries, depositors, lessors, tenants, co-ventuers or

parners (hereinafter, in this paragraph "Claimants") against or in respect of

Reliance (Canada) shall be and hereby are stayed and suspended;

(c) the right of any Claimant to make demands for payment on or in respect of any
.

guarantee or similar obligation or to make demand or draw down under any letters

of credit, bonds or instruents of similar effect, issued by or on behalf of

Reliance (Canada), to take possession of, to foreclose upon or to otherwise deal
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with any property, wheresoever located, of Reliance (Canada) whether held

directly or indirectly, as principal or nominee, beneficially or otherwise, or to

continue any actions or proceedings in respect of the foregoing, is hereby

restrained;

(d) the right of any Claimant to assert, enforce or exercise any right (including,

without limitation, any right of dilution, buy-out, divestitue, forced sale,

acceleration, termination, suspension, modification or cancellation or right to

revoke any qualification or registration), option or remedy available to it

including a right, option or remedy arising under or in respect of any agreement

(including, without limitation, any contract, debt instrent, guarantee, option,

co-ownership agreement or any agreement of purchase of sale but not including

any eligible financial contract, as defined in the Winding-up and Restructuring

Act) to which Reliance (Canada) is a party, arsing out of, relating to or trggered

by the occurence of any default or non-performance by Reliance (Canada) or the

makg or filing of these proceedings, or any allegation contained in these

proceedings, is hereby restrained; and

(e) all Claimants are restrained from exercising any extra judicial remedies against

Reliance (Canada), including, without limitation, the registration or re-registration

of any securities owned by Reliance (Canada) into the name of such persons,

firms, corporations or entities or their nominees, the exercise of any voting rights

attaching to such securities, the retention of any payments or other distrbutions

made in respect of such securties, any right of distress, repossession, or

consolidation of accounts in relation to amounts due or accruing due in respect of
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or arising from any indebtedness or obligation of Reliance (Canada) as of the date

hereof.

27. THIS COURT ORDERS that no action lies against the Liquidator, any of its

affiiates (the "Affliates") any director, officer, agent, representative or employee of the

Liquidator or of the Affiliates, any entity or person (or director, officer, agent, representative or

employee of any such entity or person) acting under the direction of the Liquidator, or the

Inspectors or any director, offcer, agent, representative or employee thereof, for anytng done

or omitted to be done in good faith in the administration of the liquidation of Reliance (Canada)

or in the exercise of the Liquidator's powers under this Order or otherwise.

28. THIS COURT ORDERS that no suit, action or other proceeding shall be

proceeded with or commenced against the Liquidator, the Affiiates, any director, officer, agent,

representative or employee of the Liquidator, or of the Affiiates, any entity or person (or

director, offcer agent, representative or employee of any such person) acting under the direction

of the Liquidator, or the Inspectors or any director, officer, agent, representative or employee

thereof, except with leave of this Cour and subject to such terms as this Cour mayimpose.

29. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator may, without the approval, sanction

. or intervention of this Cour and without previous notice to the policyholders or creditors of

Reliance (Canada) or any other person,

(a) take control of the estate and effects of Reliance (Canada) or such par thereof as

the Liquidator shall determine;
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(b) bring or defend any action, suit or prosecution or other legal proceeding, civil or

criminal, in the Liquidator's own name as liquidator or in the name or on behalf

of Reliance (Canada), as the case may be;

(c) car on the business of 
Reliance (Canada) so far as it is necessary or incidental to

the winding-up of Reliance (Canada);

(d) lease or mortgage or otherwise realize upon the undertakng, property and assets

of Reliance (Canada) or any par or pars thereof;

(e) sell the real and personal property, effects, intangibles and choses in action of

Reliance (Canada), including all or any portion of Reliance (Canada)'s contracts

and products and related assets, including, without limitation, Reliance (Canada)'s

lists of policyholders and customers, by public auction or private contract, and

transfer the whole thereof to any person or company, or sell them in parcels;

(f) do all acts and execute, in the name of and on behalf of Reliance (Canada), all

deeds, receipts, and other documents, and for that purose use, when necessar,

the seal of Reliance (Canada), and file any elections (tax or otherwise), objections

or registrations, and file any notices, all as may be necessar or desirable in the

opinion of the Liquidator for the better liquidation of Reliance (Canada);

(g) prove, ran, claim and draw dividends in the matter of the banptcy, insolvency

or sequestration of any contrbutory, for any sum due to Reliance (Canada) from

the contrbutory,. and take and receive dividends in respect of the banptcy,

insolvency or sequestration, as a separate debt due from that contrbutory and

rateably with the other separate creditors;



.' ~ ~ , .

- 13 - ~c2

(h) draw, accept, make and endorse any bil of exchange or promissory note in the

name of and on behalf of Reliance (Canada);

(i) give discharges of mortgages and other securities, parial discharges of mortgages

and other securties, and pay property taxes and insurance premiums on

mortgages and other securities taken in favour of Reliance (Canada);

u) pay such debts of Reliance (Canada) as may be necessary to be paid in order to

properly preserve and maintain the undertakng, property and assets of Reliance

(Canada) or to caryon the business of Reliance (Canada);

(k) surrender possession of any premises occupied by Reliance (Canada) and disclaim

any leases entered into by Reliance (Canada);

(1) apply for any permits, licences, approvals or permissions as may be required by

any governental or regulatory authority;

(m) re-direct Reliance (Canada)'s mail;

(n) enter into any eligible financial contracts, as defined in the Winding-up and

Restructuring Act;

(0) take possession and control of all securties in which Reliance (Canada) has an

interest (directly or indirectly) and exercise all rights that may be enjoyed by a

holder of such securties including, without limitation, rights (i) that may arise by

virte of the holder being a pary to a shareholder or similar agreement that may,

by way of example, restrct the powers of the directors to manage or supervise the

management of the business and affairs of the corporation, (ii) to receive
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inormation, (iii) to attend at and cause to be held meetings of holders of such

securities, (iv) to vote such securities for the removal or election of directors and

approval of signficant transactions (such as the sale or disposition of all or

substantially all of the assets of such company or the winding-up, liquidation,

rehabilitation, bankptcy, receivership, restrcturing or amalgamation of such

company), and (v) to sell or otherwise dispose of such securities;

(P) compromise all calls and liabilities to calls, debts and liabilities capable of

resulting in debts, and all claims, demands and matters in dispute in any way

relating to or affecting the assets of Reliance (Canada) or the winding-up of

Reliance (Canada), on the receipt of such sums, payable at such times, and

generally on such terms as are agreed on by the Liquidator;

(q) make such compromise or other arangements with creditors or persons claiming

to be creditors of Reliance (Canada) as the Liquidator deems expedient; and

(r) do and execute all such other things as are necessar for, or incidental to the

winding-up of the affairs of Reliance (Canada), including without limitation

entering into agreements incurng obligations.

30. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the Liquidator may, with the approval

of this Cour and on such notice as the Cour may direct:

(a) arange for the transfer or reinsurance of all or a portion of the policies of

Reliance (Canada); and

(b) cancel all or a portion of the outstanding policies of Reliance (Canada).
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31. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator and any of the Liquidator's agents,

offcers, directors, representatives or employees shall be deemed not to be an employer or a

successor employer of the employees of Reliance (Canada) within the meaning of the Pension

Benefits Act (Ontario), Employment Standards Act (Ontario), the Labour Relations Act (Ontario)

or any other Federal, Provincial or Muncipal legislation governng employment or labour

standards or any other statute, regulation or rule of law or equity for any purpose whatsoever

and, fuer, that the Liquidator and any of the Liquidator's agents, directors, officers,

representatives or employees shall not be and shall be deemed not to be, in possession, charge or

control of the property or business or affairs of Reliance (Canada) pursuant to any Federal,

Provincial or Muncipal legislation, statute, regulation or rule of law or equity which imposes

liability on the basis of such status including, without limitation, the Environmental Protection

Act (Ontaro), the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, or the Ontario Water Resources Act,

and this shall be binding on all trbunals and administrative bodies.

32. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator may retain, employ or engage such

actuares, accountants, financial advisors, investment dealers, solicitors, attorneys, valuers or

other expert or professional persons as the Liquidator deems necessary or desirable to assist the

Liquidator in fulfillng the Liquidator's duties, and all reasonable and proper expenses which the

Liquidator may incur in so doing shall be costs ofliquidation of Reliance (Canada).

33. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator may act on the advice or information

obtained from any actuary, accountant, fiancial advisor, investment dealer, solicitor, attorney,
.

valuer or other expert or professional person, and the Liquidator shall not be responsible for any

loss, depreciation or damage occasioned by acting in good faith in reliance thereon.
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34. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator shall be paid such remuneration as

the Cour Orders.

35. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator shall be at liberty to apply reasonable

amounts against its remuneration, expenses and disbursements on a monthly basis and that such

amounts shall constitute advances against its remuneration and expenses on, but subject to, the

passing of its accounts.

36. THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and any other orders in these proceedings

shall have full force and effect in all Provinces and Terrtories in Canada.

37. THIS COURT SEEKS AND REQUESTS the aid and recogntion of any Cour or

administrative body in any Province or Terrtory of Canada and any Canadian Federal Cour or

administrative body and any Federal or State Cour or administrative body in the United States of

Aierica and any Cour or administrative body in the United Kingdom or elsewhere to act in aid

of and to be complementary to this Court in carrying out the terms of this Order.

38. THIS COURT ORDERS that the costs of this application, including the costs of

the Inspectors, are to be assessed on a solicitor and his own client basis and shall be costs of

liquidation of Reliance (Canada).

39. THIS COURT ORDERS that interested paries may apply to the Cour for advice

and directions on 7 days' notice to the Liquidator and the Inspectors, and that the Liquidator may

at any time apply to this Cour for advice and directions.

~'~i() .
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Schedule "B"

Court File No: 01-CL-4313
Date: 20090714

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

Commercial List

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
)

)
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA )

Applicant )
)
)

)
)

)

)

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.C. 1991,

C.47, AS AMENDED
AND IN THE MATTER OF THE

WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING
ACT, R.S.C. 1985, C.W-ll, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN

-and-

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Respondent

C. CAMPBELL J.:

Graham D. Smith, Lauren Butti for
KPMG Inc., the Liquidator of Reliance
Canada

Deborah S. Grieve, for the Insurance
Commissioner for the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania, Liquidator of Reliance
Insurance Company

Elizabeth Pilon, Jennifr Cantwell for

the Under-Limit Claimants of Reliance
Canada

James H Grout representative counsel
for the Over-limits Claimants

Heard: April 16 & 17,2009

REASONS FOR DECISION

(1) This Application concerns the allocation of surplus arising from the liquidation of the

Canadian branch among those who may be entitled in Canada and the creditors of the United
States-based foreign-based insurance company to which it is related and which is itself in
liquidation.

(2) The liquidator ofthe Canadian branch of Reliance Insurance Company, KPMG Inc. ("the
Canadian Liquidator"), seeks advice and direction with respect to an anticipated surplus of assets
over claims of the propert and casualty insurance business in Canada. The direction sought

concerns the entitlement, if any, of Canadian policyholders to interest on post-liquidation claims
under the Winding-Up and Restructuring Act, R.S.c. i 985 c. W- 11 ("WURA") for claims made
during a run-off period.
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(3) A Procedural Order dated January 25, 2009 provided for the appointment of

representative counsel for the two classes of claimants in the liquidation of Reliance Canada
affected by the motion.

(4) Reliance Insurance Company is a propert and casualty insurer incorporated in the early
1800' s in the Commonwealth of Pennsy lvania. In 1918, Reliance Insurance Company
established a Canadian branch ("Reliance Canada") in the City of Toronto to carry on specific
insurance business in Canada. Reliance Canada carried on business in Canada as a branch of a
foreign insurance company under the predecessor legislation to the Part XII of the Insurance
Companies Act, S.c. 1991, c. 47 (the "ICA"), and ultimately under the ICA.

(5) The ICA sets out a regime and imposes specific requirements for the carrying on of
business of a Canadian branch of a foreign insurance company such as Reliance Canada. Among
other matters, a Canadian branch must seek approval to issue policies yin Canada, maintain in a
trust account in Canada assets of prescribed value and keep appropriate records of its customers
and claimants and the nature of its liabilities, including those under policies.

(6) The Reliance branch in Canada is regulated by the Offce of the Superintendent of
Financial Institutions in Canada, which issues detailed guidelines and requirements under the
ICA.

(7) In May 2001, Reliance U,S. was insolvent and its regulator, the Insurance Commission

for Pennsylvania, sought and was granted an order on October 3,2001 appointing the
Commissioner liquidator ("U.S. Liquidator") of Reliance U.S.

(8) On October 5,2001, pursuant to the ICA, the Superintendent took control of the assets in

Canada of Reliance Canada and pursuant to the recommendation of the Superintendent, the
Attorney General of Canada sought and was granted an Order of Winding-Up pursuant to the
WURA dated December 3, 2001 and on the same day, KPMG was appointed liquidator of
Reliance Canada.

(9) All policy loss claims that had been settled prior to the commencement of the Winding-
Up were paid by Reliance Canada prior to the commencement of the Winding-Up. Reliance
Canada's policies were not cancelled with the winding-up, but rather continued to be run-off and
settled in the normal course of claims adjudication. From the beginning of the winding-up, this
Court permitted payment of various policy loss claims within certain thresholds ("Authorized
Policy Payments") as these claims were settled and allowed during the course of the liquidation.

(10) In particular, pursuant to the Appointment Order and subsequent extension Orders of this
Court, the Liquidator paid the following policy benefits by way of Authorized Policy Payments:
(a) defence costs; (b) valid policy loss claims up to the $250,000 limit of the voluntary
compensation payment of the Property and Casualty Insurance Compensation Corporation
("PACICC"); and (c) valid policy loss claims, not covered by PACICC, up to $25,000.
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(11) Further, as the liquidation progressed, this Court granted Orders approving distributions

by various interim dividend payments ("Interim Dividend Payments") on all allowed policy loss
claims in the estate of Reliance Canada (to the extent such claims had not already been paid-in-
full by way of the Authorized Policy Payments). This Court's Order of April 8,2008 brought
the total authorized level of Interim Dividend Payments to 100% of the principal amount of
claims.

(12) Claims other than policy claims have either been paid or provided for by further order.

o
(f
zo

(13) As a consequence of the two types of payments (the Authorized Policy Payments and the
Interim Dividend Payments), many policy loss claims were paid-in-full as they were settled and
allowed. That is, the liquidation did not cause any delay in payment-in-full of these claims. .(As

of December 31, 2007 approximately 18,240 such policy loss claims, with a total value of
approximately $66 milion, had been paid-in-full without any delay caused by the liquidation.)
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(14) Conversely, several reinsurance claims and 64 policy loss claims (with a combined total

value of approximately $65 million) could not be paid-in-full contemporaneously with their
being settled and allowed, because they exceeded the Authorized Policy Payments and they were
settled prior to the cumulative Interim Dividend Payments level reaching 100%. These policy
loss claims were instead paid over time by way of the Court-authorized Interim Dividend
Payments, ultimately resulting in a cumulative 100 cents on the dollar distribution on April 8,
2008. (Similarly, the allowed ordinary creditor claim was not paid until the Order of December
17,2008).

(15) Those policyholders who were paid in full as settled and allowed (as they would have
been in contract) are represented in this application as "Under-Limits Claimants.") Those
claimants not paid in full immediately as their policy loss claims were settled and allowed in the
liquidation are referred to as "Over-Limits Claimants." The Canadian Liquidator currently
forecasts a surplus in the Canadian estate of approximately $95.8 million.

Four Questions

(16) The four questions posed by this motion for directions are as follows:

Question 1: Does subsection 95(2) ofthe Winding-up and Restructuring Act, R.S.c.
1985, c.W-ll ("WURA") apply to the winding-up of Reliance Canada, so

that interest on allowed claims in the winding-up of Reliance Canada is
payable pursuant to subsection 95(2), in the case where there is a surplus,
in priority to any release to Reliance Insurance Company ofthe balance of
any assets that the Court may ultimately approve under subsection 161 (l 0)
of the WURA?

Question 2: If the answer to Question 1 is yes, on what basis is post-liquidation
interest to be determined? That is, on which type of claims is it payable, at .
what rate, is it simple or compounded, from what date(s) does it run, and
are interim payments that were made on claims to be first applied toward
the interest payable on the claim and then to the principal amount of the



claim or first toward the principal amount ofthe claim?

Question 3: If the answer to Question 1 is no, is interest payable in the winding-up of
Reliance Canada on allowed claims on some basis other than
subsection 95(2) of the WURA, in the case where there is a surplus, in
priority to any release to Reliance Insurance Company of the balance of
any assets that the Court may approve under subsection 161 (1 0) ofthe
WURA?

Question 4: If the answer to Question 1 is no, and the answer to Question 3 is yes, on
what basis is post-liquidation interest to be determined?

(17) The position of the Canadian Liquidator is that Part 1 of the WURA by s. 9 of the statute

applies to all windings-up also applies by s. 95 to codifY entitlement to post-liquidation interest
payable from a surplus, since Part II ofthe WURA, which applies specifically to Insurance
Companies, does not refer to the application of a surplus to post-liquidation interest.

(18) The U.S. Liquidator in its submission raises the issue of the applicability of s. 95 of the
WURA, given the application of Part II of the statute,

(19) Even assuming that s. 95 of the WURA applies and even if some interest is payable, the
U.S. Liquidator questions why the Court should exercise discretion to permit certain
policyholders (Canadian) to be paid interest with respect to paid claims when other policyholders
and other creditors of Reliance U.S. wil likely be subject to significant shortfalls of the principal
amount of their policy loss claims against Reliance U.S.

(20) The U.S. Liquidator also questions, assuming some interest might be payable, why the
rate of interest should exceed the actual interest earned on the assets of the Canadian Branch
during the course of the Winding-Up (approximately 3.9% per annum.)

(21) Both the Under- and Over-Limit Claimants support the Canadian Liquidator in the

propositon that s. 95 of the WURA does apply and that the Canadian policyholders are entitled
to receive 5% of their claims from the date of the Canadian liquidation orders (December 3,
2001) to the date of actual payment.

(22) The Over-Limit Claimants assert that in the event the Court applies a later date for the
commencement ofa rate of interest accruing on the Under- and Over-Limit claims, the Over-
Limit Claimants should recover 5% from the date at which those Claimants should have received
payment pursuant to the applicable policy terms.

(23) Section 95 of Part I of the WURA reads as follows:

95. (1) The court shall distribute among the persons entitled thereto any surplus that remains after the satisfaction
of the debts and liabilities of the company and the winding-up charges, costs and expenses, and unless
otherwise provided by law or by the Act, charter or instrument of incorporation of the company, any
propert or assets remaining after the satisfaction shall be distributed among the members or shareholders
according to their rights and interests in the company.
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(2) Any surplus referred to in subsection (1) shall first be applied in payment of interest from the commencement
of the winding-up at the rate offive per cent per annum on all claims proved in the winding-up and
according to their priority.

(24) As noted by counsel for the U.S. Liquidator, the WURA is made up of three parts: Part I
- General; and two parts applicable to specific industries, which deal specifically with foreign
banks and foreign insurance companies, respectively: Part II - Authorized Foreign Banks,
which applies only to the winding-up ofthe business in Canada of authorized foreign banks and
to the liquidation of their assets (s. 150); and Part II - Restructuring ofInsurance Companies,
which applies only to insurance companies, including foreign insurance companies (s. 159.1).

(25) Each Part contains its own provisions regarding the priorities in the distribution of assets
in a winding-up: Part 1- ss. 93-95; Part II: ss 158.1-158.2; and Part II - s. 161. The provisions
of Part I apply subject to those of Part II and Part II, respectively.

(26) Part II of the WU, dealing with foreign banks, does contain specific terms that
provide for the payment of interest from the commencement of the winding-up at the rate of 5%
before payment out of remaining assets.

(27) Similar provisions do not apply in Part II that deal with winding up ofInsurance

Companies.

(28) Section 161 of the WURA under Part II contains detailed provisions relating to claims in
the case of policies of life insurance and policies of accident insurance. Among other things, s.
161 (2) does provide for the interest component of claims of policyholders on life insurance
policies and the priority ranking of claims of policyholders in foreign companies for life policies.

(29) The problem that has given rise to this motion is that there are no detailed provisions
applicable to propert and casualty policies in Part II as are applicable to life or disability
policies.

(30) It is conceded by all parties that whatever assets the foreign insurer (Reliance Insurance

Company) had to maintain in Canada in order to operate here have now come under the
jurisdiction ofthe Canadian winding-up Court. See Maska Us. Inc, v. Kansa General
International Insurance Company Ltd., 1998 CanLII 12824 at 29 (QCCA).

(31) As well there is no issue that the winding-up Court sits to administer the assets which are
within its jurisdiction and for that purpose the Court administers only the law of its jurisdiction,
both on procedural and substantive matters. When a winding-up order is made for the Canadian
business of a foreign company, the provisions of the Canadian statute apply and control the
entire situation. The Canadian winding-up is an independent and self-contained proceeding.

The Position of the Canadian Liquidator

(32) Prior to the coming into force ofss. 95(2) of the WURA on June 28, 1996, the rules about
interest in a winding-up were strictly common-law rules. In a winding-up, the well-established
"interest stops" rule means that interest on provable claims stops accruing as at the
commencement of the winding-up; however, at common-law ifthere ultimately is a surplus in
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the estate, post-liquidation interest is payable where there had been a right to interest on a claim
by contract, course of conduct, judgment or statute.

(33) The position of the Canadian Liquidator is that the notion of payment of post-liquidation
interest in the event of a surplus, and the applicable interest rate, were codified by the 1996
addition of ss. 95(2), which replaced common law rules that previously applied.

(34) The issue in this case arises from the run-off of claims in the Winding Up of Reliance
Canada. Where some claimants have incurred delay in distribution caused by the liquidation and
have suffered no prejudice, the Canadian Liquidator submits that ss. 95(2) of the WURA clearly
applies, and post-liquidation interest is payable on appropriate claims, at the statutory simple rate
of 5% per annum, before any balance is released to the U.S. Liquidator.

(35) Further, the Canadian Liquidator submits that, properly construed and applied, ss. 95(2)

envisages that interest is payable to those having claims where payment-in-full was in fact
delayed by virtue of the liquidation process (i.e., in this case, only the Over-Limits Claimants.)
Interest is calculated from the date those Over-Limits Claimants would otherwise have been
entitled to payment in the ordinary course (i.e., absent a liquidation) to the date of actual
payment-in-full to them of principal and interest.

(36) The Canadian Liquidator further submits that any interim distributions (by Authorized
Policy Payments or Interim Dividend Payments) that were made to these Over-Limits Claimants
should be treated as being allocated first to the post-liquidation interest component, and then to
the principal amount, in accordance with this Court's 2003 decision in Attorney General
(Canada) v, Confederation Trust Company, 2003 Can LII 18103 (ON S.C.)

(37) The submission on behalf of the U.S. Liquidator urges that the Court has discretion to
determine issues including interest and if any interest is to be awarded, it should be limited to the
actual return on assets. This position would lead to the conclusion that the 1996 Part II
amendments to the WURA provide a complete code in respect of the Winding Up ofInsurance
Companies.

(38) One of the few cases on this issue is the decision of Justice Durand of the Quebec
Superior Court in Kansa General International Insurance Company, 2004 CanLII 21472. While
the facts are quite different, I agree with the observation at paragraph 37, which favours
coherence between amending parts of legislation such as Parts I and II of the WU. I am not
satisfied that there is a contradiction between the provisions of Part II and s. 95 as it applies to
Insurance Companies.

(39) The position of the U.S. Liquidator contrasts the treatment of different types of
policyholders' claims depending on the policy type; namely Life (including accident and
sickness) and Non-Life (which includes propert and casualty policies such as those issued by
Reliance.)
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(40) There is a rationale to the distinction made in s. 161 (2) and (3) between Life Policies and
others. Interest that is expressly provided for in s. 162(3) refers to interest that is part of the
policy, not simply interest that arises on a claim in the liquidation.

(41) I accept the position of the Canadian Liquidator that the winding-up Court sits to
administer the assets which are within its jurisdiction and for that purpose the Court administers
only the law of its jurisdiction, both on procedural and substantive matters. When a winding-up
order is made for the Canadian business of a foreign company, the provisions of the Canadian
statute apply and control the entire situation. The Canadian winding-up is an independent and
self-contained proceeding, In Re Suidair International Airways Ltd., (1951 J 1 Ch. 165, at 173-
174).

(42) As noted, prior to the coming into force ofss. 95(2) of the WURA on June 28,1996, the
rules about interest in a winding-up were strictly common-law rules. The effect of what is
known as the "interest stops" rule meant that interest on provable claims stops accruing as at the
commencement of the winding-up. At common-law if there was ultimately a surplus in the
estate, post-liquidation interest would be payable where there had been a right to interest on a
claim by contract, course of conduct, judgment or statute. See Attorney General (Canada) v,
Confederation Trust Company, 2003 Can LII 18103 at paras. 21, 24 and 28 (ON S.C.); Canada
(Attorney General) v, Security Home Mortgage, 2003 ABQB 588, at paras. 86 and 89 (Can LII).

(43) The position of the U.S. Liquidator is that since s. 161(3) only provides for interest in
respect of Life Policies, there is no statutory requirement that interest be paid in relation to
propert and casualty insurance policies prior to the transfer of any surplus, It is submitted that if
Parliament had intended to require interest on such claims, an express provision could have been
inserted into s. 161 similar to s. 158.1 dealing with claims against foreign banks.

(44) The U.S. Liquidator further submits that s. 95 in Part I does not apply to Reliance, as
specific provisions are dealt with in s. 161 and the provisions of Part I by s. 9 are subject to the
provisions of Part III.

(45) The U.S. Liquidator urges that when the provisions of s. 161(6) are properly applied,
there is no surplus, as claimants of Reliance (those in the U.S. Liquidation) are expected to suffer
a significant shortfall in their claims against Reliance. In the result, as counsel submitted there
should be no "surplus" in s. 95(1) for which the interest in s. 95(2) would be triggered.

(46) I have concluded that there is a logic that supports the position of the Canadian
Liquidator. The analysis commences with what Pepall J. of this Court held in an earlier decisionl
in this liquidation, as follows:

(24) By November 8,2001, two liquidation estates were created, one in the U.S. and one in Canada, The WURA
specifically provides for a winding up order in respect of the "insurance business in Canada of the foreign
insurance company if the court is of the opinion that for any reason it is just and equitable".f9J There is,
therefore, no issue that there was jurisdiction to make the winding up and appointment orders. As noted in
Re Breakwater Co.,il 01 the jurisdiction of the court to wind up a company is not defeated because a winding

i Canada (Attorney General) v. Reliance Insurance Company, 2007 CanLII 4 i 899 at 

para. 24 (ONSC)
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up order has already been made in the company's foreign country of origin, The court then administers the
assets of the company that are within its jurisdiction: Re: Suidair International Airways Ltd.pii

(44) The winding-up Court sits to administer the assets which are within its jurisdiction and for that purpose the
Court administers only the law of its jurisdiction, both on procedural and substantive matters. When a
winding-up order is made for the Canadian business of a foreign company, the provisions of the Canadian
statute apply and control the entire situation, The Canadian winding-up is an independent and self-contained
proceeding.

o
if
Zo

(47) Part I and s. 95 do apply to liquidations other than those of insurance companies. Section
161, which applies to insurance situations, in my view does not contain a complete code as urged
by the U.S. Liquidator. Section 161 does provide some specific provisions for interest, namely
those in which the contract itself (i.e., aLife Policy) provides for interest.

Lf".
Q)
I'("

(48) I do not find it inconsistent to conclude that liquidation interest, as opposed to contract
interest, would be governed by s. 95(2).

..
C
mo

Q)oo
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(49) I accept the submission of the Canadian Liquidator as set out in paragraph 54 of counsel's
factum:

The application of ss, 95(2) to the situation of a surplus in the liquidati on of a branch such as Rei iance
Canada is entirely harmonious and consistent with the treatment of all other liquidations under the WURA or
bankruptcies under the BIA, Further, far from undermining or contradicting Part II of the WURA (which is
simply the liquidation sequel of the regulatory regime in the ICA), ss. 95(2) it is entirely harmonious with the
legislative and regulatory regime for foreign insurers who choose to operate in Canada, such as Reliance
Insurance Company. As noted in Part II above, that regime imposes conservative margin (i.e., surplus)
requirements on foreign insurers and they must deposit in trust in Canada sufficient assets to create a margin
of assets over the value of the Canadian branch liabilities, which margin is currently targeted at i 50%. The
notion ofa surplus for the protection of the claimants ofthe Canadian branch is 'built-in' from the-very point
that the foreign insurer chooses to commence business in Canada, .

(50) The concept of Canadian claimants looking to Canadian branch assets finds its
reciprocity in a decision of the New York Court of Appeals dealing with claims against New
York assets by a foreign claimant:

We have pointed out in Matter of People (Norske Lloyd Insurance Company) (supra) that the Legislature in
allowing foreign insurance companies "to do business in this State and country intended to treat the domestic
agency largely as a complete and separate organization, to place it on a parity with domestic corporations, to
supervise and regulate it as such and to require it by the deposit of prescribed assets to set up within this
country a capital corresponding to that of domestic corporations and which should be security for business
transacted by it here and not elsewhere", Creditors who have dealt with the insurance company here have
more than a preference in the distribution of the proceeds of the assets of the corporation on liquidation, or
even than a specifi c lien upon the assets, They are the only claimants who are entitled to share in that
distribution, They are the only persons who on liquidation may be regarded in some sense as the equitable
owners of the fund in liquidation. All others must look for satisfaction of their claims to the domiciliary
representative of the foreign company and not to the fund here. The doctrine that equality is equity can have
no application in the liquidation of assets beyond the groups or classes which may share in the distributi on
under the State. Here "the statute does not classifY in different degrees of preference those who are entitled
to its protection. They are all in the same class; claimants are entitled to equal protection of the statute or to
none at alL."

We cannot escape the conclusion that the Legislature in providing carefully for the deposit here of capital by
the foreign company for the security and protection of those who transact business with the company here



intended to provide protection as complete as can be given to them through the liquidation of the assets or
capital so deposited for their benefit. Concededly, under the statute the claimants who are entitled to the
protection of the statute would receive in this proceeding payment of interest on their claims if the foreign
corporation were not insolvent. These claimants may not be deprived of the full benefit of the provisions of
the statute requiring deposit of capital here suffcient to protect fully those dealing with the foreign company
here, because el sewhere the assets applicable to payment of debts proves insuffcient.

Matter of People (Norske Lloyd Insurance Company), 249 N,Y, 139 at 148- ISO (N .Y. CA 1928) (footnote
references deleted)

(Cited with approval on another point: Union Indemnity Insurance Company, 199 A,D.2d 209 at 2 i 2 (N, Y,
App. Div, 1993)

(51) A purposive approach to interpretation of the statutory provisions by reading the words
of the statute as a whole in their ordinary sense within the concept and context of the Act is
accepted as a means to find the intention of Parliament. See Re Metcalfe & Mansfield Alternative
Investments II Corp, 2008 ONCA 587 at 11-12 (CanLII) ("Re Metcalfe"), leave to appeal denied
2008 CanLII 46997 (S.C.C.); Interpretation Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. 1-21

(52) Commercial realities are appropriately applied to the interpretation of provisions of an
insolvency statute. See Re Metcalfe, supra at 11, Saulnier v, Royal Bank of Canada, 2008 SCC
58 at para. 42 (CanLII)

(53) The logic that is consistent with the Canadian Liquidator position as well as the statute is
as follows:

(a) Canadian claimants are entitled to be paid from Canadian assets before any

payments to a foreign liquidator;

(b) Payment of any contractual interest on insurance policies is to be paid in
accordance with s. 161 of Part II;

(c) If any other interest is payable in calculating a surplus, it wil be dealt with under

s. 95, Part 1.

(54) The distinction that is applicable to policyholders of Reliance in Canada is that business
is being run-off so that policyholder claims arise and are only triggered at some time after the
commencement of the winding-up.

(55) Only those policyholders whose claims arise during the run-off the payment of which is
delayed by the liquidation would be entitled to interest to run from the time it otherwise would
have been paid. This result is consistent with both s. 95(2) and s. 161.

(56) The logical conclusion to this analysis is that only the Over-Limits Claimants would be
entitled to interest calculated to the payment in the ordinary course (i.e., absent a liquidation) to
the actual payment of principal and interest.

(57) The submissions of the U.S. Liquidator recognize that there may be an equitable
jurisdiction under s. 161 that could allow for interest to Over-Limits Claimants limited to time of
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actual loss, but that it should be limited to the actual rate of recovery on the surplus assets of
3.990 rather than the 5% provided for in s. 95(2).

(58) If! am correct that s. 95 can be read harmoniously with s. 161 as applied to run-off

propert and casualty policies, there is no need to speculate or calculate what rate might be.

(59) The Under-Limits Claimants's position does not fit within the logical analysis above.
There was no period during which they were delayed in receiving payment in full or, as counsel
for the Canadian Liquidator submits, the claim to interest of Under-Limits Claimants runs for
zero days.
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(60) I conclude that it would lead to an absurd result if one group, the Under-Limits

Claimants, received a payment of interest greater than that which would be received by the Over-
Limits Claimants. Such a result would be a denial of 

the interests of fairness, equality and
predictability among creditors as between the debtor company and creditors.

..
C
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(61) The approach to interest above is consistent with that applied by Blair J. (as he then was)
of this Court in Canada (Attorney General) v. Confederation Life Insurance Co" (2001) 0.1. No.
2610 at paras. 22-26 (S.C.J.)

(62) One final matter arises. Do the interim payments that were made to Over-Limits
Claimants (authorized by the Court as funds were available) operate first to pay accruing interest
so that the principal balance remains?

(63) I accept the submission ofthe Canadian Liquidator that the interest first approach is
preferable and previously accepted in Corideration Life, supra at paragraphs 29-33.

(64) In the result, an Order wil issue as proposed by the Canadian Liquidator at paragraph 81

of counsel's factum:

(81) The Liquidator therefore respectfully seeks an Order declaring that the Questions
posed be answered as follows:

Question 1: Yes: subsection 95(2) of the WURA applies to the winding-up of
Reliance Canada, so that interest on allowed claims in the winding-up of
Reliance Canada is payable pursuant to subsection 95(2), in the case
where there is a surplus, in priority to any release to Reliance Insurance
Company (represented by the V,S, Liquidator) of the balance of any
assets that the Court may ultimately approve under subsection i 61 (I 0) of
the WURA.

Question 2: The proper construction and application of subsection 95(2) results
in payment of post-liquidation interest to the Over-limits Claimants, but
not to the Under-limits Claimants. The interest is to be calculated as
simple interest (i.e., not compounded), at an annual rate of 5%, on the
unpaid portion of each'Over-limits Claimant's allowed claim from the
time such claim was settled and allowed (or, (a) in the case ofa Disputed
Claim, from the time since the commencement of the winding-up that it



Question 34:

would have been eligible for pre-judgment interest, but for the winding-
up, but not earlier than the commencement of the winding-up, and (b) in
the case of an ordinary creditor claim that was already payable as of the
commencement of the winding-up, from the commencement of the
winding-up) until such portion was paid.
Any payments made to Over-limits Claimants by way ofInterim
Dividend Payments and/or Authorized Policy Payments during the
course of the winding-up are to be treated as being allocated first toward
any post-liquidation interest payable on the claim of an Over-limits
Claimant, and then to the principal portion of such claim.

In light of the recommended answers to Questions 1 and 2 above,
it is not necessary to answer Questions 3 and 4.

At the Conclusion

(65) I wish to acknowledge the assistance of all counsel, particularly the representative
counsel, in this matter. Despite the amendments made in 1996, the WURA remains a diffcult
and at times contradictory statute in its application to different kinds of financial institutions.

(66) In the circumstances, I would not think a costs award appropriate, but if any part is of a

contrary view, they may make written submissions.

Released: C. CAMBELL J.
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Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURABLE ) TUESDAY, THE 14TH
)
) DAY OF JULY, 2009JUSTICE C. CAMPBELL

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.c. 1991, C,47, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, R.S.C. 1985, C.W-LL, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURCE COMPANY

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION made by KPMG Inc., in its capacity as Liquidator

("Liquidator") of the insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance

Canada"), for advice and directions in respect of post-liquidation interest on claims in the

winding-up of Reliance Canada, was heard April 16 and 17, 2009, at 330 University Avenue,

Toronto, Ontario.
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ON READING the report of the Liquidator dated January 5, 2009 ("Preliminary

Report"), filed, the supplementary report of the Liquidator dated February 10, 2009

("Supplementary Report"), fied, the Affidavit of Art Mullin sworn March 5, 2009, filed, and

upon hearing the submissions of counsel for the Liquidator, counsel for the Insurance

Commissioner for the. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as Liquidator of Reliance Insurance

Company ("U.S. Liquidator"), representative counsel for the Over-Limits Claimants (as defined

in the Order of this Cour dated January 29, 2009), and representative counsel for the Under-

Limits Claimants (as defined in the Order of this Court dated January 29,2009),

1. THIS COURT ORDERS, ADVISES AND DIRECTS that the following four

questions posed to the Court by the Liquidator:

Question 1:

Question 2:

Question 3:

Does subsection 95(2) of the Winding-up and Restructuring
Act, R.S,C. 1985, c. W-ll ("WURA") apply to the winding-up
of Reliance Canada, so that interest on allowed claims in the
win,ding-up of Reliance Canada is payable pursuant to
subsection 95(2), in the case where there is a surplus, in

priority to any release to Reliance Insurance Company of the
balance of any assets that the Court may ultimately approve
under subsection 161(10) of the WURA?

If the answer to Question 1 is yes, on what basis is post-
liquidation interest to be determined? That is, on which type of
claims is it payable, at what rate, is it simple or compounded,
from what date(s) does it run, and are intetim payments that
were made on claims to be first applied toward the interest
payable on the claim and then to the principal amolIt of the
claim or first toward the principal amount of the claim?

If the answer to Question 1 is no, is interest payable in the
winding-up of Reliance Canada on allowed claims on some
basis other than subsection 95(2) of the WURA, in the case
where there is a surlus, in priority to any release to Reliance

Insurance Company of the balance of any assets that the Cour
may approve under subsection 161(10) of the WURA?



Question 4:

~I
- 3 -

If the answer to Question 1 is no, and the answer to Question 3
is yes, on what basis is post-liquidation interest to be
determined?

are respectively answered as follows:

Question 1:

Question 2:

Yes: subsection 95(2) of the WURA applies to the winding-up
of Reliance Canada, so that interest on allowed claims in the
winding-up of Reliance Canada is payable pursuant to
subsection 95(2), in the case where therè is a surplus, in
priority to any release to Reliance Insurance Company

(represented by the u.s, Liquidator) of the balance of any

assets that the Court may be ultimately approve under

subsection 161(10) of the WURA,

The proper construction and application of subsection 95(2)
results in payment of post-liquidation interest to the Over-
limits Claimants, but not to the Under-limits Claimants. The
interest is to be calculated as simple interest (i.e., not
compounded), at an annual rate of 5%, on the unpaid portion of
each Over-limits Claimant's allowed claim from the time such
claim was settled and allowed (or, (a) in the case of a Disputed
Claim (as defined in the Preliminar Report), from the time
since the commencement of the winding-up that it would have
been eligible for pre-judgment interest, but for the winding-up,
but not earlier than the commencement of the winding-up, and
(b) in the case of an ordinary creditor claim that was already
payable as of the commencement of the winding-up, from the
commencement of the winding-up) until such portion was paid,

Any payments made to Over-limits Claimants by way of
Interim Dividend Payments and/or Authorized Policy
Payments (as those terms are defined in the Preliminary

Report) during the course of winding-up are to be treated as
being allocated first toward any post-liquidation interest
payable on the claim of an Over-limits Claimant, and then to

the principal portion of such claim.



Questions 3-4:

-'I - ~~

In light of the recommended answers to Questions 1 and 2
above, it is not necessary to answer Questions 3 and 4.

dt~
G. Argyropoulos. Registrar
Superior Court of Justice

ENTERED AT IINSCRIT Å TORONTO
ON I BOOK NO:
lE I DANS LE REGISTRE NO.:

NOV Z 4 2009

PER I PAR: ITS \'.

Joanne Nicoara
Registrar, Superior Court of Justice
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Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARO SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

THUSDAY, THE 26th DAY)
)

) OF JU, 2003

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPAN

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.C. 1991, C.47, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF'THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, R.S.c. 1985, C.W-LL, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURACE COMPAN

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION, brought by KPMG Inc., liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance (Canada)"), was heard

this day at 393 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Report oftheLiquidator dated June 20, 2003, fied, the Order

of this Cour dated December 3,2001 appointing the Liquidator (the "Appointment Order") and

the Orders of this Court dated January 30,2002, Apri129, 2002, May 8,2002, December 6, 2002



- .

- 2 - 85
and March 26, 2003 (collectively the "Extension Orders"), and on hearing submissions of

counsel for the Liquidator and counsel for Maritime Road Development Corporation, no one else

appearing although properly served as appears from the proof of service filed:

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of the Notice of Motion and materials

herein is good and suffcient service of this motion, that the motion is properly returnable before

this Cour and that further service thereof upon any interested party other than those parties

served be and is hereby dispensed with.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that paragraphs 8, 9 and 11 of the Appointment Order,

amended by the Extension Orders, are hereby further amended nunc pro tunc to extend the date

of June 30, 2003 to December 31, 2003 or such later date as this Court may order.

3. TilS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay a first

interim distributi9n from the estate of Reliance (Canada) in the amount of 25% of valid and

allowed policyholder loss claims, where such amount exceeds the payments authorized by

paragraphs 8 and 90fthe Appointment Order.

~
iO

ENTERED p,:rflNSCt\\1 Po TORON
. ON/BOOK NOR:EGISTRE NO:
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JUN 2 6 2003
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Schedule "E" Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

- COMMRCIAL LIST

THE HONOURLE THUSDAY, THE 2nd DAY

MR. JUSTICE FAREY

)
)
) OF SEPTEMBER, 2004

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURACE COMPAN

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.C. 1991, C.47, AS AMNDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, R.S.C.1985, C.W-ll, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN:

"._.......""
~í\(j~ SUPr:~/ c, .9/ \'

I ,," 0.r/! rtl.- ___ 13 \

I¡.'? /;,/'/~ 1 S', \
L c' I::;(t.., j;''l r )::. ¡~ I-I, i. ,..~ ~-" \'" l' ~'-'J -... t\''' \'p\)"~,,-, , -~'l, " ',,t\ "", J -rj'
\' "

¿' \\ ° C).,'/ ~ r
'~'~%" r\" /I' c, /,1C.~~~~'"

THE ATTORNEY GENERA OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURACE COMPAN

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION, brought by KPMG Inc., liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance (Canada)"), was heard

this day at 393 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Report of the Liquidator dated August 25, 2004 (the

"Report"), the Affidavit of Gale Rubenstein sworn August 25, 2004 and the Afdavit of Robert

O. Sanderson sworn August 25, 2004, fied, and on hearing submissions of counsel for the



- 2 -
~~

Liquidator, no one else appearng (except for counsel for Maritime Road Development

Corporation) although properly served as appears from the proof of service, filed:

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of the Notice of Motion and materials

herein is good and sufficient service of this motion, that the motion is properly retuable before

this Cour and that fuher service thereof upon any interested party other than those paries

served be and is hereby dispensed with.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that the accounts of the Liquidator for the period

October 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004, as reflected in the financial statements of Reliance (Canada)

attached to the Report, be and they are hereby passed and approved as submitted.

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the fees and disbursements of the Liquidator and

of its counsel, Goodmans LLP, for the period October 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004 be and they are

hereby approved as submitted.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay up to

$25,000 on valid claims under the Meridian program, until fuher order of this Cour.

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay a

second interim distrbution from the estate of Reliance (Canada) in the amount of 25% of valid

and allowed policyholder loss claims, where, and to the extent that, such amount combined with

the amount of payment by way of the first interim distribution exceeds the payments authorized

by either paragraph 8 of the Order of ths Cour dated December 3, 2001 inter alia appointing the

Liquidator or paragraph 4 hereinabove.

SEP 0 7 2004

..~
~~~= --

n DAVID EVANSk85Ç.~
ENTERED AT I INSCRIT À TORONTO
ON I BOOK NO:
LE I DANS LE REGISTRE NO,:

PER/P*,
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Schedule "F" Court File No. Ol-CL-4313

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

- COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURLE WEDNESDAY, THE 21st DAY

MR. JUSTICE FAREY

)
)

) OF DECEMBER, 2005

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURACE COMPAN

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.C. 1991, C.47, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, RS.C. 1985, C.W-ll, AS AMNDED

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERA OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIACE INSURACE COMPAN

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION, brought by KPMG Inc., liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance (Canada)"), was heard

this day at 393 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Report of the Liquidator dated December 14, 2005 (the

"Report"), the Affidavit of Gale Rubenstein sworn December 14, 2005 and the Affidavit of i.

George Gutfreund sworn December 14, 2005, filed, and on hearing submissions of counsel for



-2- e¡ /~ ~.~ d?~~ ~7~/7 ~J 7(. ~ r~.,
the Liquidator, and , although properly served as appears from the proof of service,A

filed:

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of 
the Notice of Motion and materials

herein is good and sufficient service of this motion, that the motion is properly returnable before

this Court and that further service thereof upon any interested party other than those parties

served be and is hereby dispensed with.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that the accounts of the Liquidator for the period 
July

1, 2004 to September 30, 2005, as reflected in the financial statements of Reliance (Canada)

attached to the Report, be and they are hereby passed and approved as submitted.

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the fees.and disbursements of the Liquidator and

of its counsel, Goodmans LLP, for the period July 1,2004 to September 30,2005 be and they are

hereby approved as submitted.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay a third

interim distribution from the estate of Reliance (Canada) in the amount of 15% of valid and

allowed loss claims, where, and to the extent that, such amount, combined with 
the amount of

payment by way of the fust and second interim distributions, exceeds the payments authorized

by paragraph 8 of the Order of this Court dated December 3, 2001 inter alia appointing the

Liquidator.
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RELli-NCE INSURANCE'COM'ANY

this day at 330 University Avenue, TorqntQ,Ontatio.
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Schedule "H"
9~

Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

- COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURABLE TUESDAY, THE 8TH DAY

MR. JUSTICE MORA WETZ

)
)
) OF APRIL, 2008

t¡cOURro~'~~,.v'VQ."" iJ:: ..
~ , ~ AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
~,., ... NCE COMPANIES ACT, S.C. 1991, C.47, AS AMENDEDd.. .'. ....;"-: ')..'. ~IlIIH/til\ \)l.-' AND IN THE MATTER OF THE

WIND1ÑG-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, R.S.c. 1985, C.W-ll, AS AMENDED

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURNCE COMPANY

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION, brought by KPMG Inc., liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance (Canada)"), was heard

this day at 330 University A venue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Report of the Liquidator dated Äpril 1, 2008 (the "Report"),

the Affidavit of Gale Rubenstein sworn April1, 2008 and the Affidavit of Robert O. Sanderson



9"::

- 2-

sworn April 1, 2008, fied, and on hearing submissions of counsel for the Liquidator, no other

party appearing, although properly served as appears from the proof of service, fied:

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of the Notice of Motion and materials

herein is good and sufficient service of this motion, that the motion is properly returnable before

this Court and that further service thereof upon any interested pary other than those parties

served be and is hereby dispensed with.

2, THIS COURT ORDERS that the accounts of the Liquidator for the period

October 1, 2006 to December 31, 2007 (the "Period"), as reflected in the financial statements of

Reliance (Canada) attached to the Report, be and they are hereby passed and approved as

submitted.

3, THIS COURT ORDERS that the fees and disbursements of the Liquidator and

of its counsel, Goodmans LLP, for the Period be and they are hereby approved as submitted.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay a fifth

interim distribution from the estate of Reliance (Canada) in the amount of 20% of valid and

allowed loss claims, where, and to the extent that, such amount, combined with the amount of

payment by way of the first, second, third and fourth interim distributions, exceeds the payments

authorized by paragraph 8 of the Order herein of the Honourable Mr. Justice Farley dated

December 3,2001 that, inter alia, appointed the Liquidator (the "Appointment Order").

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Appointment Order is hereby varied such that

the payments authorized by paragraphs 8, 9 and 11 thereof (as may have been varied or amended

by further Orders of this Cour) are authorized to be paid up to the lesser of (i) the full amount of



98
- 3 -

the relevant valid claim, or, in the case of paragraph 11, the amount of reasonable legal and other

costs, and (ii) the applicable limits of the relevant policy.

~:.'. :....~; :..0.: ,. \".' ;:.~...~r~j':~¡-i" i~", T(Jdor..rTC:

i)/l / L'~()f~.:~: ¡.;C~:

'_.r: / D/\í\~~::~ LE ¡'~C~~C~!ßTF1E NO.:

4f~_1
V

APR Ú 8 ¡ooa
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Schedule "I"

Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

- COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURABLE MR.
)
)

)

WEDNESDA Y, THE 17TH DAY

mSTICE CAMPBELL OF DECEMBER, 2008

/~:'''t;(lJrí'~':''."
/,~:-()" '~'~'\

!,i¿'(- . 

I...... 

"E(f'.- ",A~;\ IN THE MATTER OF ,
1,~;i1P)rr,7 ~) RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY

\\~\ '!;~)(':l:: /;¡ AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
\~'::.:~:~:~:~.,:~:::j3;1 INSURANCE COMPANIES ACl~ S.c. 1991, C.47, AS AMENDED

....~.'-.~...,.~"..,..

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, RS.C. 1985, C.W-ll, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMæ ANY

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION, brought by KPMG Inc., liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance Canada"), was heard

this day at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Report of the Liquidator dated, December 10, 2008 (the

"Report"), fied, and on hearing submissions of counsel for the Liquidator, no other part

appearing, although properly served as appears from the proof of service, filed:



ló/
- 2 -

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of the Notice of Motion and materials

herein is good and sufficient service of this motion, that the motion is properly returnable before

this Court and that further service thereof upon any interested part other than those parties

served be and is hereby dispensed with.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay a

distribution from the estate of Reliance Canada in the amount of 100% of valid and allowed

ordinary creditor claims up to a cumulative total amount of $100,000.00, including, for greater

certainty, the claim of Hub International Ltd. filed in the amount of (U.S.) 
$5,810.87.

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Liquidator is hereby authorized to pay to the

Propert and Casualty Insurance Compensation Corporation ("P ACICC") as remuneration for

PACICC's inspectorship herein the sum of$129,244.99.

~~~/.
ENTERED AT ¡INSCRIT A TORONTO
ON ¡BOOK NO:
LE I DANS LE REG ISTRE NO.:

DEC 172008

PER/PAR: iv'
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Schedule "J"

Court File No. 01-CL-4313

ONTARO SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURLE THUSDAY, THE 18th DAY

MR. mSTICE FAREY
~COURì

(yQ:''0!. 0;( v?Q. ú'.: .-CI _
("cg ~ m~ ~r ~c.(/ -"IIICI. ~;Qtfl/EURE Q'Î ~\S AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
INSURANCE COMPANIES ACT, S.c. 1991, C.47, AS AMENDED

)
)
) OF DECEMBER, 2003

IN THE MATTER OF
RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPAN

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCTURING ACT, R.S.C. 1985, C.W-LL, AS AMENDED

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURACE COMPANY

Respondent

ORDER

THIS MOTION, brought by KPMG Inc., liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance (Canada)"), was heard

this day at 393 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the Report of the Liquidator dated December 12, 2003 (the

"Report"), filed, the Order of this Court dated December 3, 2001 appointing the Liquidator (the

;~",:.



~'.

- 2 - /ot.

"Appointment Order"), and on hearing submissions of counsel for the Liquidator, no other party

appearing, although properly served as appears from the proof of service fied:

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of the Notice of Motion and materials

herein is good and sufficient service of this motion, that the motion is properly returnable before

this Court and that further service thereof upon any interested party other than those parties

served be and is hereby dispensed with.

2. THIS COURT ORDERS that the accounts of the Liquidator for the periods

December 3, 2001 to December 31, 2002 and January 1, 2003 to September 30, 2003, as

reflected in the financial statements of Reliance (Canada) attached to the Report, and the fees and

disbursements of the Liquidator, and of its counsel, Goodmans LLP, from the commencement of

the liquidation to September 30, 2003, be and they are hereby passed and approved as submitted.

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that paragraphs 8, 9 and 11 of the Appointment Order,

as amended by further orders of this Court, are hereby fuiiher amended nunc pro tunc to extend

the date of December 31,2003 to June 30, 2004 or such later date as this Court may order.

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that any claims payable in foreign currency shall be

converted to Canadian cunency at the Bank of Canada noon spot rate of exchange for

exchanging such currency to Canadian cuiTency on November 8, 2001.

ENTERED At /INSORIT À. TORONTO
ON/BOOK NO: .
LE/DANS LE REGIST~F NO.

DEC 1 8 1003
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Schedule "K"

Unaudited Financial Statements of

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

In our capacity as Liquidator, we have prepared the Balance Sheet of Reliance Insurance
Company, Canadian Branch (in liquidation) as at September 30, 2009, December 31, 2007,
September 30, 2006, September 30, 2005, June 30, 2004, September 30, 2003 and December 3,
2001, the Statement of Earnings and Changes in Surplus for the twenty-one months ended

September 30, 2009, fifteen months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September
30, 2006, fifteen months ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004, and
twenty-two months ended September 30, 2003, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the twenty-
one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen months ended December 31, 2007, twelve
months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months ended September 30, 2005, nine months
ended June 30, 2004, and twenty-two months ended September 30, 2003 in our capacity as
liquidator. These financial statements have not been audited or reviewed.

In view of the uncertainties surrounding a branch in liquidation, the ultimate realization of the
assets and liabilities will differ from the recorded amounts and the differences may be material
(see notes),

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their purposes.

KPMG Inc., Liquidator.
Reliance Insurance Company, Canadian Branch

December 8, 2009
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(Unaudited - See Cover Page)

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

Balance Sheet
As at September 30,2009, December 31,2007, September 30,2006, September 30,2005, June 30, 2004, September 30,2003 and December 3,2001

($000)

September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30, June 30, September 30, December 3,(Unaudited - see cover page) 2009 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2001

Assets

Cash and short term investments (note 4) $ (29) $ 2,694 $ 1,101 $ 916 $ 155,078 $ 156,277 $ 56,165Investments (note 4) 136,062 138,240 147,761 141,308 108,949(market value: Sep/09 - $139,111; Decl07 - $138,632;
Sep/06 - $148,049; Sep/05 - $140,919; Jun/04 -$0;
SepU03 - $0; DeclOl - $114,392)

Receivable from other insurers/reinsurers 5,054 9,649 11,965 26,863 27,576 13,908 6,090Income and premium taxes recoverable
3,070 3,446Receivable from Reliance US (note 8) 4,848 4,848 4,848 4,848 4,848 4,181Receivable from Reliance US - current balance due (note 8) 35 159 222 870Other receivables 386 348 361 621 600 958 1,978Reinsurers' share of provision for

Unpaid claims 22,730 22,942 34,928 42,172 71,704 51,761 57,536Unearned premiums
306 2,564 4,847 5,430 9,670Estimate for deductibles on unpaid claims

78 106 1,444 2,527
Total assets $ 169,086 $ 178,721 $ 201,429 $ 219,592 $ 265,629 $ 237,029 $ 246,361

Liabilties and Surplus

Policy liabilities:

Unpaid claims (note 5) $ 64,661 $ 63,905 $ 92,190 $ 111,980 $ 171,544 $ 145,815 $ 135,088Unearned premiums (note 6)
421 3,989 8,216 9,177 15,189Allowed claims (note 9) 12,802 20,340 24,163 33,106 17,269Interest distribution (note 15) 5,200

Other liabilities 608 857 605 567 841 2,158 1,91770,469 77,564 113,556 140,699 213,707 174,419 152,194Payables:
Due to Reliance US (note 8) 4,848 4,848 4,848 4,848 4,848 4,848Due to other insurers/reinsurers 1,101 539 576 260 142 189 192Brokers 6 2,388 2,573 2,656 2,916 2,924 3,389Taxes and other creditors 954 1,150 1,096 1,034 1,031 1,653 1,826Reinsurance deposits 10 10 10 10 10 10 3,494

Total liabilities 77,388 86,499 122,659 149,507 222,654 184,043 161,095

Surplus (note 10) 91,698 92,222 78,770 70,085 42,975 52,986 85,266
Contingent liabilities (note 11)

Total liabilities and surplus $ 169,086 $ 178,721 $ 201,429 $ 219,592 $ 265,629 $ 237,029 $ 246,361
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

I ()tf

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

1. Nature of the business:

The Canadian Branch of Reliance Insurance Company, which was primarily engaged in the
writing of commercial property and liability insurance in Canada, commenced a voluntary
wind down of its operations in Canada effective August 2000. In May 2001, Reliance
Insurance Company's U,S. operations ("Reliance US") were placed under an order of
rehabilitation. On October 3, 2001, Reliance US was put into liquidation and declared
insolvent by the Court of Pennsylvania.

On December 3, 2001, the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (the "Court"), on the
application of the Attorney General of Canada, granted an order appointing KPMG Inc. as
provisional liquidator (the "Liquidator") of the insurance business in Canada of Reliance
Insurance Company, including the assets in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company,
together with its other assets held in Canada under the control of its chief agent ("Reliance
Canada"). By further order of the same date, the Court ordered that Reliance Canada be
wound up.

Since August 2000, existing insurance policies in force have been allowed to expire and
Reliance Canada has neither renewed nor cancelled existing policies, nor has it written any
new business, Reliance Canada continues to run off the existing policy and claim liabilities
in an orderly fashion.

Pursuant to Orders of the Court the Liquidator has paid policy holders and claimants 100%
of valid and allowed loss claims pursuant to the fifth interim distribution approved by the
Court in April 2008.

2. Basis of preparation:

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements have been
selected with a view to reflecting the financial position of an insurance company that is in
liquidation.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses for the reporting period. The
actual results wil differ from these estimates and, in view of the additional uncertainties
surrounding a company in liquidation, the differences may be materiaL. Changes in
estimates are recorded in the accounting period in which they are determined.

No provision has been made for future liquidation costs. Interest income earned on the
assets of Reliance Canada is likely to offset the unbooked future costs of the liquidation.

1 of 13
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

3. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Investments and investment income:

Investments in RBC funds (see note 4) are carried at book value equal to the net invested
proceeds. Income distributions and any interest received are reinvested back into the funds.
When the carrying amount is greater than the fair market value and the market rate
valuation is considered temporary in nature, the carrying amount of these financial
instruments is not reduced to fair market value. Where the carrying amount is greater than
the fair market value, and after considering such factors as the length of time the carrying
value has exceeded the fair market value and the significance of the difference in the
values, and if the market rate valuation is consider to be other than temporary in nature, the
investment is written down to fair market value,

Investments in term deposits and treasury bils (see note 4) are carried at cost plus accrued
interest of $11 at December 31, 2007, $334 at June 30, 2004, $424 at September 30,2003
and $325 at December 3, 2001.

Bonds, including accrued interest of $3,128 at December 3, 2001 (see note 4), 'are carried
at amortized cost, providing for the amortization of the discount or premium on an effective
yield basis to maturity.

Investment income is recorded as it is earned. Gains and losses arising on disposal of
investments are on a settlement date basis, and are calculated on the basis of amortized
cost.

(b) Premium revenue and unearned premiums:

Unearned premiums represent the amount of premiums written which are applicable to the
unexpired terms of the policies in force or to the remaining terms of certificates issued as
part of program business. Accordingly, premiums written are taken into income when
earned. Although policies were generally issued for one year, Reliance Canada also wrote
some multi-year policies and some program business with underlying certificates which are
multi-year.

If unearned premiums are not sufficient to pay expected claims and expenses, a premium
deficiency is said to exist. Any changes in estimates of premium deficiencies recorded as
net premium earned in the period in which they are determined.

The reinsurers' share of any unearned premiums, net of a provision for doubtful amounts, is
recognized as amounts recoverable from reinsurers at the same time using principles
consistent with the method for determining the unearned premium liability.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

//0

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September 30,2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

(c) Provision for unpaid claims:

The provision for unpaid claims includes adjustment expenses and represents an estimate
for all costs of investigating and settling claims incurred on or before the balance sheet
date. The provision estimates do not take into account the time value of money or make

explicit provision for adverse deviation.

The provision includes case basis estimates, and a provision for claims incurred but not
reported and for development on case basis estimates ("IBNR"). These estimates of future
loss activity are necessarily subject to uncertainty and are selected from a wide range of
possible outcomes. All provisions are periodically reviewed and evaluated in the light of
emerging claim experience and changing circumstances. The resulting changes in
estimates of the ultimate liability are recorded as incurred claims in the period in which they
are determined, On a periodic basis, the Liquidator instructs external actuaries to confirm
their best estimate of the policy liabilities in accordance with accepted actuarial standards of
practice except that time value of discount is not used.

(d) Reinsurance ceded:

Net premiums earned and claims incurred are recorded net of amounts ceded to, and
recoverable from, reinsurers. To indicate the extent of the credit, collection and contractual
risks related to third party reinsurance, estfmates of amounts recoverable from reinsurers
are recorded separately from the estimated provisions for unearned premiums and unpaid
claims.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers, net of a provision for doubtful amounts, are
estimated and recognized at the same time and using principles consistent with Reliance
Canada's method for establishing the related liability.

4. Short term investments and investments:

Short-term investments are readily convertible into cash and have maturities of less than 12
months. The carrying value of the short-term investments approximates their market value,

Composition of the cash and short term investments:

September 30, December 31, September 30, June 30, September 30, December 3, 

2009 2007 2006 2004 2003 2001

Cash $ (29) $ 1,053 $ 1,101 $ 916 $ 2,856 $ 420 $ 1,263

Short term investments
(including term deposits
and treasury bils) 1,641 152,222 155,857 54,902

Total $ (29) $ 2,694 $ 1,101 $ 916 $ 155,078 $ 156,277 $ 56,165
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

ii /

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

Composition of investment portolio:

RBC Cdn Money Market fund

RBC Short Term Income fund

RBC US Money Market fund

September 30, 2009 December 31, 2007 September 30, 2006 September 30, 2005
Book Market Book Market Book Market Book Market
Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value

$ 39,803

72,910

23,349

$ 39,803

75,959

23,349

$ 49,031

69,812

19,397

$ 49,031

70,204

19,397

$ 53,243

77,845

16,673

$ 53,243

78,173

16,673

$ 61,506

71,007

8,795

$ 61,506

70,618

8,795

Bonds - Cdn Government

Bonds - Cdn Corporate

$ 136,062 $ 139,111 $ 138,240 $ 138,632 $ 147,761 $ 148,089 $ 141,308 $ 140,919
Total investments

RBC Cdn Money Market fund

RBC Short Term Income fund

RBC US Money Market fund

June 30, 2004 September 30, 2003 December 3, 2001

Book Market Book Market Book Market
Value Value Value Value Value Value

$ $ $ $ $ $

Bonds - Cdn Government

$ $ $

99,959

8,990

$ 108,949

105,415

8,977

$ 114,392

Bonds - Cdn Corporate

Tolal investments $

The carrying value of the Short Term Income Fund was written down to fair value as at March
31,2006 and September 30,2007. The amounts of the adjustments were $1,658 at March
31, 2006 and $444 at September 30, 2007.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

II;)

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

5. Unpaid claims:

(a) Nature of unpaid claims:

The provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (and for third part reinsurers' share
thereof) are based upon estimates of the ultimate claim costs associated with claims occurring
as of the balance sheet dates, including estimates for IBNR claims, These estimates are
subject to variability, and the variability could be materiaL. The variability arises because all
events affecting the ultimate settlement of claims have not yet taken place and may not take
place for some time. Additional factors affecting the variability include receipt of additional
claim information, the continually evolving and changing regulatory and legal environment,
court decisions, economic conditions, public attitudes, claims management practices, actuarial
studies, the quality of the data used for projection purposes, the effect of inflationary trends on
future claims handling and settlement practices, and significant changes in the severity or
frequency of claims from historical trends. In addition, the longer the time required for the
settlement of a group of claims, the more variable the estimates.

Reliance Canada had fronting reinsurance arrangements with other insurers and provided
self-insurance facilities for selected corporate clients. Because Reliance Canada is the
direct insurer under these arrangements, policyholders and claimants look to Reliance
Canada for settlement of their claims. Generally Reliance Canada obtains repayment
directly from the insurers or corporations. In some cases Reliance Canada holds security
deposits from the insurers or corporation, which may be available to fund payment of
claims. Reliance Canada is exposed to credit risk if claims exceed either the security
deposits or the self-insured's ability to pay.

Reliance Canada accepted certain insurance risks that other insurance companies have
underwritten ("assumed reinsurance"). Because of the necessary reliance on the ceding
companies for information regarding reported claims, and the resulting reporting lag
between the dates of occurrence and the time Reliance Canada is notified of the claims, the
inherent uncertainties of estimating reserves is greater for assumed reinsurance than for
direct insurance,

In the normal course of settling claims, Reliance Canada acquires rights to subrogate its
claims against other parties and, in some cases, recover a portion of the loss from the
policyholder as a deductible amount. Salvage and subrogation are deemed not to be
material and, as such, are recorded as received, Deductible amounts, which are

recoverable on liability claims, have been recognized as assets.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

1/3

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

(b) Provision for unpaid claims:

Considerable judgement is required to evaluate claims and establish claim liabilties; The
estimation of the claims provision is based on known facts and interpretation of
circumstances. The basic assumptions made in establishing actuarial liabilities are best
estimates of possible outcomes, Methods of estimation have been used which it is believed
produce reasonable results given current information; however, the process of determining the
provision necessarily involves risks that the actual results wil deviate, perhaps substantially,
from the best estimate made. It is a/so not possible to estimate the impact of the additional
uncertainties surrounding a company in liquidation on the estimation process.

The changes in the unpaid claim provisions recorded in the balance sheet as at September
30, 2P09, December 31,2007, September 30,2006, September 30,2005, June 30,2004 and
September 30, 2003 and their impact on the claims and adjustment expenses for the twenty-
one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen months ended December 31, 2007, twelve
months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months ended September 30, 2005, nine months
ended June 30, 2004, and twenty-two months ended September 30, 2003, are as follows:

Jan 1, 2008 to Oct 1, 2006 to Oct 1, 2005 to Jul 1, 2004 to Oct 1, 2003 to Dec 3, 2001 to

SeD 30, 2009 Dec 31, 2007 SeD 30, 2006 SeD 30, 2005 Jun 30, 2004 SeD 30, 2003

Unpaid claims at beginning of period
Recoverable from reinsurers at beginning of period

Net unpaid claims at beginning of period

$ 63,905
22,942
40,963

$ 92,190
34,928
57,262

$ 111,980

42,172
69,808

$ 171,544

71.704
99,840

$ 145,815

51,761
94,054

$ 135,088
57,536
77,552

Increase(decrease) in estimated losses and

Expenses for claims occurring in prior years 4,534 (12,514) (8,722) (19,974) 12,539 42,317
Increase(decrease) in outstanding deductibles

(60) (30) (65) (1,090)
Paid on claims (net) occurring during current year

(Gap Programs)
Paid on claims (net) occurring during prior years

(3566)
(283)

(3,502)
(171)

(3,593)
(278)

(9,750)
(577)

(6,111)
(1,377)

(23,348)
Net reserves at end of period
Ceded reserves at end of period

Gross reserves at end of period

41,931
22,730

$ 64661

40,963
22,942

$ 63905

57,262
34928

$ 92 190

69,808
42,172

$ 111 980

99,840
71,704

$ 171 544

94,054
51,761

$ 145815

In order to show the progress of the liquidation from the date of winding-up and, as it is not
practicable in a winding-up situation to determine fair value with suffcient reliability, the fair
value of the unpaid claims and adjustment expenses, gross and recoverable from

reinsurers, has been omitted.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

//If

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30,2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

6. Unearned premium:

The provisions for unearned premiums include actuarially determined estimates for
premium deficiencies. The process for estimating any provisions for premium deficiency
involves the use of estimates concerning factors such as expected claims and expenses
and future payout patterns. Any provisions are necessarily subject to uncertainty.

The provision estimates do not take into account the time value of money or make explicit
provision for adverse deviation.

7. Reinsurance:

In the normal course of business, Reliance Canada sought to reduce the loss that may arise
from catastrophes or other events that cause unfavourable underwriting results by reinsuring
certain levels of risk, in various areas of exposure, with other insurers. Reliance Canada is not
relieved of its primary obligation to policyholders as a result of its third part reinsurance.

Failure of reinsurers to honour their obligations could result in losses to Reliance Canada,

Reliance Canada makes specific provisions against reinsurance receivables and recoverables
from companies who are in liquidation or run-off, with whom balances are in dispute or where
the reinsurer is not settling balances due to Reliance Canada for reasons related to Reliance
US, In addition, the Reliance Canada records a general allowance against reinsurance
receivables and recoverables based upon the level of allowance already in place and
management's judgement. The general allowance reflects the view that a company in
liquidation or run-off has a greater collection risk than a going concern company. The
establishment of the allowances for doubtful accounts involves judgement and therefore
creates a degree of uncertainty as to adequacy at each reporting date.

Reliance Canada's reinsurance program includes both reinsurance placed by Reliance

Canada directly with Canadian licensed reinsurers and reinsurance entered into by Reliance
US which reinsures both Reliance (Canada) policies and policies of Reliance US and other
companies in the Reliance group (the latter are referred to as the "International Reinsurance
Treaties").

8. Head office:

(a) Payable to Head Offce:

As at September 30, 2009, $4,848 is recorded in Reliance Canada's books as due to
Reliance US for underwriting commissions paid to ECS Managers (the "ECS Commission
Payable"); at December 31,2007 the payable to head offce was $4,848; at September 30,
2006 $4,848; at September 30, 2005 $4,848; at June 30, 2004 $4,848 at September 30,

2003 $4,848 and at December 3,2001 the payable was niL.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

//5

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30,2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

The liquidator for Reliance US (the "US Liquidator"), subsequent to the date of liquidation,
advised Reliance Canada that Reliance US had setted the ECS Commission Payable with
ECS Managers on behalf of Reliance Canada prior to the respective and separate
liquidations of Reliance Canada and Reliance US. Additionally Reliance US receives
reinsurance proceeds on behalf of Reliance Canada pursuant to the International
Reinsurance Treaties. The US Liquidator has taken the position that it wishes to withhold
payment to the Canadian Liquidator of reinsurance collected by Reliance US on behalf of
Reliance Canada on the International Reinsurance Treaties ("Canadian Reinsurance
Proceeds") up to the amount of the ECS Commission Payable of $4,848 or US$3,034. The
Canadian Liquidator disputes that the US Liquidator is entitled to do this; however, the
parties have agreed that, without prejudice, Reliance US will pay to Reliance Canada any
Canadian Reinsurance Proceeds in excess of the ECS Commission Payable. The US
Liquidator and the Canadian Liquidator have agreed to fix the Canadian dollar balance due
to Reliance US for the ECS Commission Payable using the exchange rate of 1.5981 (see
note 14).

(b) Receivable from Reliance US:

As at September 30, 2009, Reliance US has collected and is holding Canadian
Reinsurance Proceeds of $4,848, pending payment or resolution of the disagreement
regarding the ECS Commission Payable, At December 31, 2007 the balance was $4,848,
September 30, 2006 $4,848; at September 30, 2005 $4,848; at June 3D, 2004 $4,848¡ at
September 30, 2003 $4,181; and at December 3, 2001 niL. While Reliance Canada has
generally billed its reinsurance in Canadian dollars, Reliance US has generally collected the
Canadian Reinsurance Proceeds in US dollars. The US dollar amount due from the
Reliance US to Reliance Canada has been fixed at a rate of 1.5981 (see note 14), The
resulting foreign exchange gain was booked through the income statement in June 2004.

(c) Receivable from Reliance US - Current Balance Due:

Any Canadian Reinsurance Proceeds collected by Reliance US in excess of the amount of
the ECS Commission Payable (the "Excess Canadian Reinsurance Proceeds"), are to be
remitted to Reliance Canada within a reasonable timeframe, As at September 3D, 2009 the
Excess Canadian Reinsurance Proceeds were $35; at December 31, 2007 the balance was
nil; at September 30, 2006 $159; at September 30, 2005 $222; at June 30, 2004 $870 at
September 30, 2003 nil; and at December 3, 2001 niL. While Reliance Canada has

generally billed its reinsurance in Canadian dollars, Reliance US has generally collected the
reinsurance in US dollars. Reliance Canada will recognize a foreign exchange gain or loss
on this balance upon receipt of funds from the Reliance
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30,2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

(d) Protocol Agreement:

Further to a protocol agreement between the Liquidator and the US Liquidator, Reliance US
provides various services to Reliance Canada, particularly in the areas of data processing,
claims and reinsurance. For the twenty one months ended September 30, 2009 the cost of
the services was $287; October 1, 2006 to December 31, 2007 $223; October 1, 2005 to
September 30,2006 $175; July 1, 2004 to September 30,2004 $262; October 1, 2003 to
June 30,2004 $187; and December 3,2001 to September 30,2003 $505.

9. Allowed claims not fully paid:

As at September 30, 2009, the allowed claim balances due on claims which have been
settled and admitted by the Liquidator, in excess of the Court authorized payments, were nil;
at December 31,2007 the allowed claim balances were $12,802; at September 30, 2006
$20,340; at September 30, 2005 $24,163; at June 30, 2004 $33,106; September 30, 2003
$17,269; and December 3, 2001 niL. Pursuant to the fifth interim distribution approved by
the Court in April 2008, the Liquidator is paying policy holders and claimants 100% of valid
and allowed loss claims.

10. Surplus:

As at September 30, 2009, Reliance Canada's estimated surplus was $91,698; at December
31, 2007 $92,222; at September 30, 2006 $78,770; at September 30, 2005 $70,085; at June
30, 2004 $42,975; at September 30, 2003 $52,986; and at December 3, 2001 $85,266. This
estimate is subject to revision. In view of the uncertainties surrounding a company in

liquidation, the ultimate realization of the assets and liabilities will differ from the estimated
results as at September 30, 2009 and the difference may be materiaL. The Winding-up and
Restructuring Act ("WURA") provides that the Liquidator may, with the approval of the Court,
release to Reliance US any balance of the assets remaining after payment of claims in the
order of priority prescribed by WURA. .
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

11. Contingent liabilties:

(a) Non-booked claims:

There is the potential that certain claims that were not reported in the books of Reliance
Canada may be valid claims against Reliance Canada ("Non-Booked Claims"). The Non-
Booked Claims would arise from policies written outside Canada, and which, arguably, should
have been reported in the books of Reliance Canada. There is no certainty as to the
magnitude of the Non-Booked Claims, if any, since they were not originally identified as being
appropriately assigned to Reliance Canada. Should additional loss result from any new
claims, such loss would be accounted for as a charge to earnings in the accounting period that
the claims are verified as liabilities of Reliance Canada.

(b) Post-liquidation interest:

Assuming that Post-liquidation Interest (as defined in note 15) is payable and accruing on
the unpaid portion of the policyholder settement amount from the date the claim setted
until the date that the policyholder is paid in full, and using an interest rate of 5%, we
estimated that the accrued interest due to these policyholders was approximately $4.2

millon at December 31, 2007. If some other basis for calculating the Post-Liquidation
interest were determined to be appropriate by the Court, the total Post-liquidation Interest
due may materially differ from this estimate. After receiving the Court directions in 2009,
the Post-liquidation interest amount was included on the September 2009 financial
statements; see note 15,

(c) Brokers Payable:

At December 31, 2007, the brokers payable balance was $2.4 milion. In the third quarter of
2008, we did a court approved call for claims for ordinary creditors. Only one claim was filed
and allowed for the Canadian equivalent of $6. The balance of the brokers payable balance
has been written off.

10 of 13
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30,2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

12. Supplementary expense information:

January 1, 2008 to October 1, 2006 to October 1, 2005 to
September 30, 2009 December 31,2007 September 30, 2006

Total Other Claims Total Other Claims Total Other Claims

Salaries $ 1,187 $ 460 $ 727 $ 745 $ 246 $ 499 $ 664 $ 289 $ 375
Offce Expenses 371 178 193 273 106 167 247 122 125
Legal/Professional Services 117 61 56 87 35 52 135 67 68
Allowance for bad debts 1 1 (1) (1) (1) (1)Head Offce Services 287 144 143 223 94 129 175 88 87
Interest (Income)/expense (65) (65) 19 19 14 14
Foreign exchange (gain)/Ioss (1,232) (1,232) 2,579 2,579 764 764
Sale of Business Expense:

KPMG Corporate Finance
Scotia Capital
Other

Liquidation Expenses:

KPMG Inc. 726 726 730 730 478 478
Goodmans LLP 696 696 632 632 201 201
Legal-Post Liquidation Interest 144 144 523 523
Legal-Reinsurance collections 22 22 523 523
PAC ICC expenses 129 129 523 523

Total Expenses $ 2,383 $ 1,264 $ 1,119 $ 5,810 $ 4,963 $ 847 $ 2,677 $ 2,022 $ 655

July 1, 2004 to October 3, 2003 to December 3, 2001 to
September 30, 2005 June 30, 2004 September 30, 2003

Total Other Claims Total Other Claims Total Other Claims

Salaries $ 945 $ 473 $ 472 $ 1,079 $ 539 $ 540 $ 2,663 $ 1,331 $ 1,332
Offce Expenses 342 171 171 318 159 159 567 275 292
Legal/Professional Services 311 155 156 111 56 55 310 155 155
Allowance for bad debts (3) (3) 6 6 (108) (108)Head Offce Services 262 130 132 187 93 94 505 262 243
Interest (Income)/expense 27 27 (406) (406) 80 80
Foreign exchange (gain)/Ioss 482 482 (31) (31) (306) (306)Sale of Business Expense:
KPMG Corporate Finance 227 227
Scotia Capital 214 214
Other 329 329

Liquidation Expenses:

KPMG Inc. 869 869 622 622 3,180 3,180
Goodmans LLP 485 485 174 174 1,017 1,017
Legal-Reinsurance collections

Total Expenses $ 3,720 $ 2,789 $ 931 $ 2,060 $ 1,212 $ 848 $ 8,678 $ 6,656 $ 2,022

The claims expenses are included in Claims incurred on the statement of earnings and
changes in surplus.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months ended September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31,2007, twelve months ended September 30,2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

13. Foreign exchange:

Further to an order from the Court, dated December 18, 2003 and amended on June 30,
2004, the Liquidator is authorized to pay claims payable in foreign currencies either:

a) in those foreign currencies in circumstances where the Liquidator is otherwise legally
entitled to do so; or

b) in Canadian currency, converted at the Bank of Canada noon spot rate of exchange for
exchanging such currencies to Canadian currency on November 8, 2001,

Further to this, in cases where the agreed claim is determined in U.S. dollars, the rate used by
Reliance Canada to calculate the Canadian equivalent is $1.5981.

14. Capital and other taxes:

Reliance Insurance is a US incorporated insurance company that carries on business in
Canada through a registered branch. For Canadian tax purposes investment income from
assets designated as investment properties, as provided for in the applicable Income Tax
Regulations, is included in its business Canadian taxable income. Non-capital capital losses
can be utilized to eliminate any resulting corporate tax on business income. Investment
income on any non-designated investment properties, such as trust distributions (in the case
of Reliance, income earned on the RBC funds), is subject to a 15% withholding tax. In 2006
and 2007 Reliance Canada was not able to include all of its investments in RBC funds as
designated investment properties as defined in the Income Tax Regulations. In 2007 Reliance
Canada expensed and paid $341 in withholding tax for the 2006 taxation year. An accrual of
$703 has been set up for the twénty-one months ending September 30, 2009, and $410 has
been set up for the twelve months ending December 31,2007. The 2006 financial statements
have not been restated, as the amount for 2006 is not materiaL.
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RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
Canadian Branch (in liquidation)

Notes to Financial Statements for the twenty-one months e'nded September 30, 2009, fifteen
months ended December 31, 2007, twelve months ended September 30, 2006, fifteen months
ended September 30, 2005, nine months ended June 30, 2004 and twenty-two months ended
September 30, 2003

(unaudited - $000)

15. Interest distribution:

In 2009 the Liquidator sought the advice and direction of the Court on the complex issue of
post-liquidation interest by way of a contested proceeding, with representative counsel for
designated classes of stakeholders. The issues to be considered by the Court included

whether in the event of a surplus in the estate of Reliance Canada and after payment of the
full principal amount of policy loss claims and ordinary creditor claims, policyholders whose
claims were not paid in full on the date their claims settled should also be paid interest on
their claims ("Post-liquidation Interest"; in the event Post-liquidation Interest were to paid on
what claims, at what rate, and on what methodology; and whether such post-liquidation
interest was payable in priority to any ultimate release of excess assets to the U.S,
Liquidator under Part III of the WURA. By Order dated July14, 2009, this Court provided its
advice and directions with respect to the entitlement to Post-liquidation Interest and the
methodology to be applied under subsection 95(2) of the WURA (the "Interest Distribution").
The Court also confirmed that the entitlement to Post-liquidation Interest takes priority to
any ultimate release of the balance of any assets to the U,S. Liquidator. Calculating the

Interest Distribution on the basis that it accrues on the unpaid portion of the policyholder
settement amount from the date the claim is settled until the date that the policyholder is
paid in full and using an interest rate of 5%, as at September 30, 2009 the estimated
Interest Distribution is $5.2 million. The monthly accrual rate is approximately $22. Prior to
the Interest Distribution being made, the Liquidator will seek the approval of the Court.
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Commercial List Court File No. Ol-CL-43 13

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

- COMMRCIAL LIST

THE HONOURALE MR. JUSTICE
CAMPBELL

THURSDA Y, THE 29TH DAY

---'-'--
. /;; cOunt';,H ~\' ,

I ,,"- r¡~!"''~-~ v. . '
'¡::g , /t",,,Ji!. I I.~,\ IN THE MATTER OF ' ,

(;'. ,¡!.':,;.~::f~;ßt.,/ ~ ì RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Gi J' L ",," '1'1 I''! '

~j~//~E;L_ ,.,-~;'1 -(td AND IN THE MATTER OF THE' ,
, ~J:uri;'n(, ~~! INSURANCE'COMPANIESACT, S.C. 1991, C,4'(, AS AMENDE)).~~~~~ ,

AND IN THE MATTEROFTHE
WINDING-UP AND RESTRUCT(JRING ACT, R.S.c. 1985, C. W-ll, AS AMENDED

)

)

)
)

, .
OF JANUARY, 2009

BETWEEN:

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Applicant

- and-

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY

Respondent

ORDER

Tins MOTION made by KPMG Inc., in its capacity as Liquidator ("Liquid(ltor") of 

the

insurance business in Canada of Reliance Insurance Company ("Reliance Canada"), .for preliminary

directions, having been first brought on for hearing January 14,2009 and adjourned, Was heard by

conference call this day at Toronto, Ontario.
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ON READING the report ("Report") of the Liquidator dated January 5, 2009, fied, and

upon hearing the submissions of counsel for the Liauìdator and counsel for the Insurance Commissìoner

for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as Liquidator of Reliance Insurance Company ("U.S,

Liquidator"), no other part appearing although served .as evidenced by the proof of service, fiJed,

1. Tins COURT ORDERS that the service made of the Notice of Motion herein for this

motion for preiìminary directions in respect of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion (as defined in the

Report), and of the supporting materials in respect thereof, is good and suffcient notìce of thìs motìon,

that this motion is properly returnable today and any further service or notice is hereby dìspensed wìth.

2. . THIS COURT ORDERS that the claimants of Reliance Canada whose policy loss

claims the. Liquidator was or is able to pay in full as they were settled and allowed by virtue of the

Authorized PolibyPayments (as that term is defined in the Report) and/or the level ofInterim Dìvìdend

Paym.ent~ (a.s that term is defined in the Repoit) reaching a 100% level (collectively, the "Under-lìmits

Claimants") are a class for the purposes of the Post-liquidation. Interest Motion,. and that Elizabeth Pilon

is hereby nominated and appointed solicitor and counsel, pursuant to section 133 of the Winding-up and

Restructuring Act, to represent the Under-limits Claimants in the Post~liquidation Interest Motion.

3. TIllS COURT ORDERS that the claimants of Reliance Canada whose (ì) policy loss

claims (a) were not paid in full as their policy loss claims were settled and allowed, or (b) were or are in

litigation and ultimately determined in favour of the claimant and would, but for the winding-up, have

been.. eligible for pre-judgment interest for the period following commencement of the winding-up, Of

. (ii) whose ordinary creditor claims were payable at the comm~ncement of the winding-up (collectively,

the "Over-limits Claimants") are a class for the purposes of the Postcliquidation Interest Motion, and that

James Grout is hereby nòminated and appointed solicitor and counsel, pursuant to section 133 of the
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Winding-up and Restructuring Act, to represent the Over-limits Claimants in the Post-liquidation

Interest Motion,

4, TIns COURT ORDERS that the solicitor and client accounts of the representative

counsel shall from time to time be assessed by this Court, and that the reasonable remuneration, costs

and expenses of the representative counsel shall be a cost and expense of the winding-up of Reliance

Canada,

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that the representative counsel is authorized to take all steps

and to do all acts necessary or desirable to carry out the terms of this Order, including entering into a

settlement subject to this Court's approval, and dealing with any regulatory. body, and to take all such

steps as are necessary 01; incidental thereto.

6. THIS COURT ORDERS that the representative counsel shall be at libert and is

authorized at any time to apply to thfs Court for advice and directions in the discharge or variation of

their powers and duties.

7. THtS COURT ORDERS that the representative counsel shall have no personal liability

or obligations as a result -of the performance of their dùties in carring out the provisions of this Order,

save and except for gross negligeQce or wilfui misconduct. .

8. THIS COURT ORDERS that no action or other proceeding may be commenced against. . .
the representative counsel in .respect of the perforrnànce of their duties under this Order without leave of

this Court on at least seven (7 days) notice to the representative counseL.

9. TIUS COURT ORDERS' that notice of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion shall be

given to (i) the rel?resentaÙve counsel, counsel for'heUS. Liquidato~, and those currently appearing on
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the service list for the winding-up proceedings as maintained by the Liquidator's counsel, by sending by

prepaid ordinary mail or by delivering by courier a copy of ,this Order and the Liquidator's Motion

Record or Records in support of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion on or before February 13, 2009;

and (ii) all other interested or affected parties, by publication ofa notice substantially in the form

attached as Schedule "A" hereto to be published (a) on one occasion in the national edition of The Globe

and Màil newspaper and (b) on the internet website maintained by the Liquidator at

ww.reliancecanada.ca. no later than February 13, 2009.

.10. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service and notice as ordered herein in respect of 
the Post-

liquidation Interest Motion shall be . good and sufficient service thereof, and that no further cir other

service shall be required in respect thereof.

11. THIS COURT ORDERS that any materials relied on in respei:t of the Post-liquidation

Interest Motion shall be served in accordance with the following:

(i) Any affdavit material responding to the Report, on or before February 27, 2009 ("Original

Affdavit Material;');

(ii) Any affdavit material, or in the case .ofthe Liquidator any report or affdavit material,

replying to Origiiial Affdavit Material of. any other party, on or before March 13,2009;

(iii) The factum and suppòrting äuthorities of the Liquidator, by no later than 15 diiys prior to the

hearng of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion;

(iv) . The facta and supporting authorities of any other party, byno later than 10 days prior to the

hearing of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion;
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(v). Any reply factum or supporting authorities of the Liquidator, no later thiin 4 days prior to the

hearing of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion,

and that all such materials, with proof of service, shall be fied with the Court no later than four days

prior to the hearing of the Post~liquidation Interest Motion.

12. . TinS COURT OROERS the Post-liquidation Interest Motion shall. be scheduled to be

heard on a date or dates which wil be determined by the Couit.

tÆ~~~~
ENTERED ÁT i. INSCHIT A TORONTO
ON/BOOK NO:
LE / DANS LE AEGISTRE NO.:

FEB 092009

PER i frAft-r



SCHEDULE "A"

~l9
IN THE MATTER OF THE WINDING-UP OF THE INSURANCE

BUSINESS IN CANADA OF RELIANCE INSURNCE COMPANY
("Reliance Canada")

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO ALL CLAIMANTS OF 
RELIANCE CANADA,

INCLUDING POLICYHOLDERS AND LOSS CLAIM CLAIMANTS

'KPMG Inc., as Liquidator ("Liquidator',') of Reliance Canada under the provisions òf the
Winding-up and Restructuring Act, hereby gives 

notice that it wil seek the advice and directions
of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice - Cùmmercial List ("Court") in respút of post-
'liquidation interest, by way of a motion ("Post-liquidation Interest Motion") which wil be
scheduled to be heard by the Court.

By the Post-liquidation Interest Motion, the Liquidator wil be seeking the advice and directions
of the Court as to whether post-liquidation interest is payable on claims in the winding-up of
Reliance Canada from any surplus in the winding-up of Reliance Canada, (lnd, if so, on what
claims and on what basis.

The Liquidator wil be recommending to the Court that 
the Court direct.hat post-1Íquidation

interest is payable from any surplus in the winding-up of Reliance Canada on the following
basis:

The holders of claims that were paid in full when settled and allowed by the Liquidator
("Under-limits Claimants") shall not be entitled to receive interest.

Interest shall be payable only to holders of: (i) policy loss claims that were not paid in
full when settled and allowed by the Liquidator (i.e" those claims on which interim
dividends and/or partial payments ,were made from .time to time); (iì) policy loss claims
that' were' or are in litigation and ultimately determiried in favour of the claimant and
would, but for the winding-up, have been eligible for pre-judgment interest for the period

. following commencement of the winding-up; and (ii) ordinary' creditor claims that were:
payable at the commencement of the winding-up (collectively, "Over':limits Claimants").

Interestpayable to.each ofthc Over-limits Claimants 
shall be calculated on unpaid

amounts of the holder's claim, until payment of such amounts from time to time, at a
, simple (non-compounded)-rate of 5% per annum, calculated from: (i) in the case of (i)
above, the time,the claim was settled and allowed; in the case of (ii) aboVe, from the ti~ie
since the commencement ofthe winding-up that it would h~ve been eligible for 

pre-

judgment interest, but for the yvnding-up, but not earlier than the commencement ofthe '
winding-up; or (iii) in the case of (iii) above, fTOtn the commencement of the winding-up.

Any distributions or payments made on a settled and allowed claim during the course of
the winding-up shall first ,be applied as if they had beep paid on, account of the interest
payable on the claim, and then to reduction of the principal amount ofthe claim.

The interest shall be payable in, prlority to any release of aSsets that the Court may
ultimately authorize be made to Reliance In.surance Company, in liquidation,

/;;V;

ø '
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Please note that the PosHiqilidation Interest Motion is' not a request or recommendation to
the Court to authorize the making of a distribution b.y the Liquidator at this time.
Depending on the Court's ruling, the" Liquidator will seek authorization for any future
distribution at the appropriate time.

Appointment of Reprcscntative Counsel

For the purposes of the Post-liquidation Interest Motion, the Cour has appointed Elizabeth Pilon
as counsel to represent the Under-limits Claimants, and James Grout as counsel to represent the
Over-limits Claimants. "The contact information for the respective representative counsel is:

For the Under-limits Claimants: . For the Over-limits. Claimants:

Elizabeth Pilon
Stilceman Elliott LLP
5300 Commerce Court West
199 Bay Street
Toronto, ON M5L IB9

James Grout

ThorntotiGroutFinnigan LLP
Suite 3200 " "
Canadian Pacific Tower
100 Wellington St, West, P.O. Toronto-
Domi"nion Centre

Toronto, Canada, MSK 1 K7TeL.: 416-869-5623
Fax: 416-947-0866

E-mail: epiI~m(gstiIceman.com TeL.: 416-304-0557
Fax: 416-304-1313
E-mail: jgrout(gtgf.ca

The mem bers of each class are bound by thc acts of thcir respective representative counseL.

This Notice is being given pursuant to the Order of the Ontario Superior Court cif Justice
" dated the 29th day of January, 2009.

KPMG Inc., Liquidator
Reliance Insurance Company - Canadian Branch, inLiquidation "
199 BayStreet, Suite 3300.

Toronto,On,tario
M5L 1B2

Attention: Ms. Janine Bradley

.Fax: 416-777.-3683
Tel: 416-777-8487 .

"E-mail:.jmbradley(!kping.ca .~\5618954
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Schedule "M"
250 Yonge Street, Suite 2400

Toronto, Ontario Canada M58 2M6

Telephone: 416,979.2211

Facsimile: 416,979.1234
gpodmans.ca

October 1, 2009

KPMGlnc.
Suite 3300, Commerce Cour West
Stn. Commerce Court
Toronto, Ontario

M5L 1B2

Attention: Elizabeth J. Murphy

OUR FILE NOS. KPMG/016699, 063080, 083770

Re: Reliance Insurance Company, in Liquidation ("Reliance")

TO OUR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED in connection with the above-noted
matter for the period January 1,2008 to September 30,2009, including the following:

Attendances with respect to claims and liabilities issues, including settlement of claims,
preparation of settlement documents, liaison and communications with policyholders, adjusters~
defence and plaintiff's counsel, applications for leave to proceed, and issues re pre-judgment and
post-judgment interest;

Attendances with respect to liquidation issues, including preparation of motion materials and
attendance at Ontario Superior Court of Justice re passing of accounts, approval of the
professional fees of the Liquidator and of its counsel and authorizing a fifth interim distribution,
post-liquidation interest issues, attendances on preparation of court materials and attendance at
Ontario Superior Court of Justice on motion for advice and directions on issue of post-
liquidation interest, including preliminary directions for appointment of representative counsel,
preparation of motion materials and attendance at Ontario Superior Court of Justice re call for
claims from ordinary creditors and re distribution to PACICC and ordinary creditors, liaison with
inspectors and attendance at management committee meetings;

Attendances with respect to U.S. issues, including reinsurance collections and cross-border
issues, meetings with U.S. representatives and set off-issues;

Attendances with respect to litigation issues, including Reliance Insurance Company v. Meridian
Warranty Management Inc. and George Bilyk;

Attendances with respect to reinsurance issues, including Swiss Re appeal and leave to appeal
and costs issues, including preparation of bil of costs, submissions and factum, review oflaw re
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possibility of assigning reinsurance contracts in connection with possible sale of branch, and
preparation of materials re reinsurance commutation;

OUR FEE: $648,216.50

$ 14,574.63

$ 33,088.84

DISBURSEMENTS:
GST:

TOTAL: $695.879.97

GOODMAS LLP

E.&O.E.

\5786327

130



Schedule "N"
/3/

RELIANCE (CANADA)

(in Liquidation)

LISTING OF GOODMANS LLP PERSONNEL
HOURS AND AVERAGE HOURLY RATES
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1,2008 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

AVG.HRLY
Name Rank Area HOURS RATE

Smith, Graham Parner Litigation 844.0 $568

Creery, Monica Associate Litigation 32.2 $505

Butti, Lauren Associate Litigation 228.6 $439

Paquette, Fanny Law Clerk Insolvency 124.0 $205

Individuals with less than 30 hours 167.4 $158

1.396.2 $464
\5786181
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GOODMAS LLP

LITIGATION

GRA SMITH is a partner in the litigation section. He dealt with litigation and acted as liaison
with policyholders, adjusters, defence counsel and plaintiffs' counsel, acted on applications for leave
to proceed, provided advice and prepared settlement documentation on the settlement of various
claims, attended management commttee meetigs, advised on set-off issues, prepared motion
materials and attended at the Superior Court of Justice on various motions. He also advised with
respect to post-liquidation interest issues, cross-border issues, and reinsurance issues, includig the
appeal by certain reinsurers, and liaised with the U.S. Liquidator.

MONICA CREERY is an associate in the litigation section. She performed legal research il
connection with the possible sale of the branch.

LAUREN BUTTI is an associate in the litigation section. She prepared materials for motions for
advice and diections by the Liquidator to the Superior Court of Ontario on the issue of post-
liquidation interest, includig preliary diections for the appointment of representative counsel,
and prepared costs submissions on the appeal by certain reinsurers in respect of litigation enforcing
reinsurance obligations..

GENERA LIQUIDATION RESPONSIBILITY

FAN PAQUETTE is a senior law clerk in the insolvency area. She drafted court documents and
prepared materials in connection with motions to the Superior Court of Justice and attended to
servce of motion materials. She also had responsibilty for internal accountig control and meetig
the requiements of the liquidator with respect to accountig and bilgs.

\5786344
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Schedule P

November 30, 2009

Reliance Insurance Company, in Liquidation
Suite 601, 100 University Ave
Toronto ON M5J 1V6

GST#122363153

BILL OF COSTS

To our professional services rendered in connection with the above-noted matter for the period
January 1,2008 to September 30,2009:

~ Review and approval of financial statements and related analysis for the quarters ending
March 31 si, 2008, June 30th, 2008, September 30th, 2008, December 31 si, 2008, March 3 1st
2009, June 30th, 2009 and September 30t/, 2009;

~ Review and approval of Management Reports for the quarters ending March 31 si, 2008, June
30t/, 2008, September 30th, 2008, December 31 st, 2008, March 31 st 2009, June 30th, 2009 and
September 30t/, 2009;

~ Review and approval of investment transactions;

~ Continued review of Reliance Canada documentation and meetings with the U.S. Liquidator
to review U.S. documentation to attempt to quantifY the magnitude of exposure to Canadian
risk not reported on the books of Reliance Canada;

~ Ongoing liaison with the U.S. Liquidator, including the return of surplus funds from the
Canadian estate to the U.S. estate, discussions as to the status of reinsurance collections, IT
systems administration, runoff models, and obtaining additional information required for the
proper administration and strategy of the Canadian estate;

~ Receipt, review, discussion and attendance at meetings with estate legal counsel to review

ongoing matters, reinsurance collections issues including setoff issues, claims settlement
issues and various other estate matters as required;

~ Continued monitoring of the Reliance staff, including providing appropriate direction and
assistance;

~ Meetings, discussions, review of assumptions and preparation of detailed runoff models
projecting the runoff of the estate;

~ Continuing to deal with policyholder and claimants' telephone calls, e-mails and
correspondence requesting specific information pertaining to the liquidator or their specific
claims;

~ Performing a number of detailed claims review, discussion of potential outcomes with claims
staff and attendance at meetings with the U.S. Liquidator's claims staff to review same;
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~ Attendance at meetings with actuarial consultant to perform an extensive review of policy
liabilities as at June 30th, 2009;

~ Receipt, review and discussion with the actuarial consultant, the results of his extensive
review as perfonned above;

~ Continued to review existing claims bordereaux in order to stratifY claims as to dollar
amounts and lines of business;

~ Review of new reported claims, discussions with claims adjudication staff and approving set
up of appropriate reserves;

~ Continued review and approval of defense and adjustment costs and authorizing payment of
same;

~ Continued monitoring and supervision of claims adjudication staff, approval of reserve
changes, approval of claims settlements, approval of claims settlement costs and
authorization of payment of same;

~ Continued follow-up on reinsurance billngs and collections;

~ Preparation for and attendance at meetings with reinsurers in the London market to agree

amounts due and ensure collection of same;

~ Responding to requests of reinsurers to perform claims audits and for commutations,
development of and execution of confidentiality agreements, obtaining requested claim fies
from storage and responding to their queries;

~ Continued to obtain shared reinsurance documentation from the U.S. Liquidator, particularly
in respect of international and reinsurance policies;

~ Continued liaison with U.S. Liquidator as to international reinsurance collections and
commission expenses associated therewith;

~ Providing information and analysis for the Inspectors as required;

~ Preparation of appropriate accounting information and fiing of appropriate non-tax statutory

returns;

~ Preparation of the December 31 si, 2007 and December 31 si, 2008 tax returns and tax accrual
estimations for the financial statements;

~ Updating ofthe Reliance Canada website for the benefit of policyholders, claimants and
creditors to enable them to obtain access to current information as to the status of the
liquidation and their claims therein;

~ Performed a detailed review of internal controls to ensure that the financial and operational
controls are functioning as set forth in the Policies and Procedures;

~ Preparation, fiing and arguing a motion before the Ontario Superior Court of Justice with

respect to a call for ordinary creditor claims;
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~ Oversight of the administration and completion of a call for ordinary creditor claims
including payment of claims;

~ Preparation, filing and arguing a motion before the Ontario Superior Court of Justice with

respect to post liquidation interest;

~ Overall administration of the estate and the Reliance staff consisting of approximately six
people, dealing with day-to-day administrative issues, responding to policyholder, claimants
and creditor inquiries and attendance at all meetings, proceedings and/or Court appearances
as required.

Our fee $ 673,440.50

18,052.68

691,493.18

34,574.67

$ 726,067.85

Disbursements

GST

Total



Schedule "Q"

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY

(in liquidation)

LISTING OF KPMG INC. PERSONNEL
HOURS AND AVERAGE HOURLY RATE
TWENTY ONE MONTH PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2008 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Name Rank Area

Sanderson, RO
Murphy,E
Gutfreund, G
Bradley, J
Briant, J

Mitilneos, E

Chairman
Associate Parner
Senior Manager
Senior Manager
Senior Manager
Staff Accountant

Insolvency/Overall Administration
Financial Reporteinsurance
Claims
Insolvency /ClaimslReinsurance
Tax
Accounting

Individuals with less than 30 hours

HOURS

75.20
403.90
36.60

531.0
30.80
32.00

157,30

/30

AVG.HRLY
RATE

$700
$658
$605
$545
$593
$145

$352

1,267.30 $397
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Schedule R

KPMGInc.
(For the Period from January 1, 2008 to September 30, 2009)

ROBERT O. SANDERSON - was the Chairman of KPMG Inc" a Chartered Accountant, Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario and a trustee in bankruptcy. He had primary
responsibility for the liquidation as a whole up to October 31, 2008. During this period, his
particular areas of concentration were with respect to the development of the overall direction,
approach and strategy for the estate, coordinating reporting to the supervising Court including
confirmation of continuance of payment of defense costs and small claims, ongoing liaison with
PACICC, the U.S, Liquidator, the inspectors and major stakeholders, financial projections for the
estate, responding to specific issues arising in the defense of claims and advising respective
counsel as to projected outcomes.

TODD MARTIN - is the Chairman of KPMG Inc., a Chartered Accountant and a licensed
trustee in bankruptcy. Mr. Martin assists with the overall oversight and management of the
estate,

ELIZABETH J. MURPHY - is a Vice President of KPMG Inc. and a Chartered Accountant. Ms
Murphy has general responsibility for all reinsurance matters, management of the investment
portfolio, communications with the U.S. Liquidator and determination of actuarial liabilities.
She is also responsible for financial reporting and overseeing the accounting departent.
Additionally, commencing November 1, 2008, Ms. Murphy took over the primary responsibilty
for the liquidation as a whole. During this period, Ms. Murphy oversaw a motion before the
Ontario Superior Court of Justice with respect to post liquidation interest. .

i. GEORGE GUTFREUN - is a Vice President of KPMG Inc. and a Chartered Accountant, a
Certified Insurance Receiver and licensed trustee in bankruptcy. Mr. Gutfreund assisted with
claims adjudication staff.

JANINE M. BRADLEY - is a Senior Manager of KPMG Inc. She is responsible for overseeing
the claims adjudication staff, reviewing and approving all significant reserve adjustments and
liaising with P ACICC and Reliance US concerning claims matters. Within the period, Ms
Bradley oversaw the call for ordinary creditor claims and a motion before the Ontario Superior
Court of Justice with respect to post liquidation interest. Ms. Bradley assists with the general
administration of the liquidation, including oversight of all financial and internal controls,
liaising with the U.S. Liquidator, human resources and office management.

JANE BRINT - is a Senior Manager of KPMG LLP and a Chartered Accountant. She provided
tax related advice and assisted with the preparation of the 2007 and 2008 annual tax returns.

ELIZABETH MITILINOS - is a Staff Accountant of KPMG LLP. She assisted with the
performance of a detailed review of internal controls to ensure that the financial and operational
controls are functioning as set forth in the Policies and Procedures.
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Schedule "S"

STIKEMAN ELLIOTT

( Stikeman Ellott LLP Barrsters & Solicitors

5300 Commerc Court Wes, 199 Bay Str, Toronto, Canada M5L 1 B9

Tel: (416) 869-500 Fax: (416) 947-0866 ww.stlkeman.com

Diect (416) 869-5623

Fax: (416) 947-0866

E-mai: Ipilon~stiema.com

BY MAI
March 27, 2009
File No.: 126170.1001

Ms. Jane M. Bradley

KPMG.LLP
Suite 3300, P.O. Box 31
Commrce Court West
199 Bay Street

Toronto ON M5L 1B2

Dear Jane:

Re: Representative Counsel

c
I enclose our account for servces rendered in connecton With the above-

referenced mattr up to Janua 31, 200, which I trt you wi fid to be

satifactry. Should you have any questions or concern with respect to the account,

please contact me.

Yours try,

gL
Elbeth Pilon

las

..

(

552866hl

/3K

TOROmo

MONTREAL

OTAWA

CAlGARY

VANCOUVER

NEWYORK

LONDóN

SYDNEY
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STIKEMAN ELLJOTT
Stikeman Elliott LLP, Barrsters & Solicitors

5300 Commerce Court West, 199 Bay Street, Toronto, Canada M5L 1B9

Tel: (416) 869-5500 Fax: (416) 947-0866 www.stikeman.com

G.S.T. NO. R121411136

Invoice
Ms. Jane M. Bradley
KPMGLLP
Suite 3300, P.O. Box 31
Commerce Court West
199 Bay Street.
Toronto, ON MSL 1B2

March 27, 2009
File No. 1261701001
Invoice No. 4765518

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED in connecon with Representative Counsel
for the period up to January 31, 2009.

(

Description of Time
Review docments I draft materis; prepare for meetig at Goodm;
Meetig with Relice, Goodm, KPMG re: representative counel fie;
Telephone cal with D. Grieve; review emails from D. Grieve;
Review caselaw from Goodis; review emails re: Reliance Cada 

proceedigs;Review Report, Order, Notices; comment on draf Order, Report and Notice; ema to KPMG re:
Irormtion request;
Review emails from D. Grieve; 

Review ema re: motion material;
Meetig with E. Pillon; review of materi provided by E. Pilon in preparation for meetig with J.
Bradley; review of ema from E. Pilon;
Review docents; prepare for meetig with KPMG; dicussion with J. Catwell;
Meetig with E. Pilon and J. Bradley;
Meetig with J. Bradley IJ. Cantwel re: inurance issues; ema G.Smith;
Telephone cal with J. Bradley;
Telephone cal with G. Smith re: Reliance Caada;
Telephone call with 1. Murphy; ema with G. Smith and D. Grieve;
Review of ema and attachents from E. Pilon;
Review and comment on revised Report, Notice, Appointment Order, tietable; revise revied
interest calculations; ema to G. Smith and J. Bradley; telephone cal with G. Smith;
Prepare memo re: research requiements;
Telephone cal with 1. Murhy;

. Review of email and attched memorandum from E. Pion;
Revie memo to J. Catwel; ema intrctions;

Review ema from D. Grieve/G.Smith; 

Meetig with G. Smith, D. Grieve;
Review and respond to ema re: motion;

552866 vI
Page 1 of3
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Descrption of Time
Review of Report of KPMG, meetig with E. Pilon. ema exchanges with E. Pillon;
Review and commt on revied motion material;
Review varous ema from G. Smith; em to G. Smith ie: upcomig motions;
Review email from Goodns; review Factu from Reliance U.S.; emal Reliane Canada;
Review of motion materi, review of email from E. Pion;

Review Responding Fact;

Ca with G. Smith, L. Butt re: Oibers appointment with Justice Capbell; intrct N. Bechai re:

ancu brief;
Researched amcus cuae issue;
Drafed memo on amicus curiae;
Review memo re: amcu; telephone cal with G. Smith; telephone cal with J. Grout;
Telephone cal withJ. Grout; telephone call with D. Grieve; ema G. Smith re: representative
counel issues;
Meetig with E. Pion. brief review of fie and ema to retreve interest calculations;
Review of ema from E. Pilon, review of case lawfromG. Smith; 

Telephone cal with D. Grieve re: appointment of representative counel and fees issues; ema to J.
Grout; emai toG. Smith; 

FEE SUMMARY

(
FEES
Professional Servces
Good and Servces Tax on Professional
Servces

CAD $21,830.75
1,091.54

CHARGES SUMMARY

Description
Photocopies
Tota Charges

Goods and Services Tax on Charges
Total Charges and Tax on Charges

Taxable Non - Taxable
0.50
0.50 0.00

Tota
0.50
0.50
0.03

CAD $0.53

Page 2 of 3
5528 vl
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(

INOICE SUMARY

Invoice No. 476518
Re: Representative Counel

Taxable Non-Taxable
Professional Servces

CST on Professional Servces

Chges
GST on Charges

AMOUN DUE

0.50 0.00

STIKEMAN ELLIOIT LLP

db
Elzabeth Pilon

Disburments and charges may not have ben posted at the date of
ths account

Please quote our File number and/or Invoice number when makg
payment Accounts are due when rendered. Interest at the rate of
3,30 percent per anum wi be charged for amounts unpaid 30 days
or more.

Payment can be wi to:

Stieman Elliott LLP
c/o Caadi Imperial Ban of Commerce

199 Bay Stree

Commere Cour West
M5L 1B9
Main Bra, TORONTO
Tranit #: 0000, Swi Code: CICCA TI
Bank Code 010

Candi Doll Account #: 87-12816

U.S. Dollar Account #: 0492019.

If you wih fuer intrctons please contact us at (416) 869-7728.

552863 vl

l'f/

File No. 1261701001

Total

$21,830.75

1,091.54

0.50

0.03

CAD $22'922.82

Page 3 of 3
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STIKEMAN ELLIOTT

Stikeman Ellott LLP Barristers & Solicitors

5300 Commerce Court West, 199 Bay Street, Toronto, Canada M5L 1 B9
Tel: (416) 869-5500 Fax: (416) 947-0866 ww,stkeman.com

Direc (416) 869-5623

Fax: (416) 947-066

E-maipilon~stiman.com

BY MAIL May 20,200

File No.: 126170.1001

Ms. Jane M. Bradley
KPMGLLP
Suite 3300, P.O. Box 31
Commerce Court West
199 Bay Street
Toronto ON M5L 182

Dear J ane:

Re: Representative Counsel

I enclose our account for servces rendered in connection with the above-
referenced matter up to May 20, 2009, which I trt you wi fid to be satifactory.

Should you have any questions or concern with respect to the account, please
contact. me.

Yw
Elabeth Pilon

EP/as
Encl.

cc. Graham Smith, Godmans LLP

S5960vl

JiJ

TORONT

MONTEA

CIAWA

CAGAY

VANCOUVR

NEWYOR

LONDON

SYDNEY
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STIKEMAN ELLIOTT
Stikeman Ellott LLP, Barristers & Solicitors

5300 Commerce Court West, 199 Bay Street, Toronto, Canada M5L IB9

Tel: (416) 869-5500 Fax: (416) 947-0866 www,stikeman.com

G.S.T. NO. R121411136

Invoice

1Æ. Jane h1. Bradley

KPMGLLP
Suite 3300, P.O. Box 31
Commerce Cour West

199 Bay Street
Toronto, ON h15L 1B2

May 20, 200
File No. 1261701001
Invoice No. 4793880

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED in connection with Representative Counsel
for the period up to May 20, 2009.

Description of Time
Research re: upcomig motions; review emails and attachments from L. Pilon; review of fie for
documents for L. Pil on;
Ema withD.Grieve. J. Grout re: Supplementary Report;
Further research, draftig of research memorandum; meetig with L. Pilon; assembled binder of
case law;
Discssion with J. Cantwell re: Reliance interest issue;
Revised research memorandum; meetig with L. Pilon;
Discus winding-up issues with L. Pil on;
Ema D.Grieve;
Emai exchange with J. Bradley; emal exchange with L. Pilon; meetig with L. Pilon; conference
call with L. Pilon and J. Bradley; review of various ema and attchments with L. Pilon; review
of fie and emas for calculations; review of cour orders;
Discssion with J. Bradley re: Reliance motion; review file re: material;
Retreved and reviewed report and cour orders from Reliance website;
Review ema from Goodmns re: upcomig motion;
Meetig with L. Pilon; reviewed Liquidator's h1otion Record; preparation from meetig with L.
Pilon;
Telephone cal with J. Bradley; dicussion with J. Cantwell re: research results;
Review of ema andattachmentfromL.Pilon; review of Mul affidavit; review of Confederation
Life Report;
Review of ema fromL.PiIon;
Cals with J. Bradley; review and respond to ema from J. Bradley and L. Pilon; review of
correspondence brad;
Emai exchangè with L. Pilon;
Ema with L. Butt re: meetig to dicuss upcomig motion;
Meetig with L. Butt, J. Bradley, L. Pilon and D, Grieve at KPh1G; review of em from L. Pilon;
email from J. Bradley; review of liabilty policy and releases for climts and policyholders;
review emails from D. Grieve; futher case law research in preparation for Factu

Pagelof4
5596 vI
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Description of Time
Meetig with J. Bradley, L. Butt, D. Grieve re: upconug motion; review follow-up email from J.
Bradley;
Review ema from 1. Pilon and J. Bradley and attched report from J. Bradley;
Draf Factm; review of case law and material from D. Grieve and L. Butt;
Work on Factum; further research re: statutory interpretation;
Finh fist draf of Factum; receive and review Fact of Liquidator and reviewed case law;

Discssion with J. Cantwell; telephone call with J. Grout;
Revised Fact in light of Liquidator's Factu; furter research re: statutory interpretation;
meetig and emails with L. Pilon;
Telephone cal with J. Grout; discusion with J. Cantwell;
Furer reviions to Factu various emailswithL.PionandJ.Bradley.J.GroutandD.Grieve;

Meetigs with L. Pilon;
Review and revie Fact;

Revied as per L. Pilon's intrctions; fuer research;

Various emil exchanges with L. Pilon; review email from J. Grout;
Furer reviions of Factu; review of Factum of Overlits; meetig with L. Pion; fial review of
case law; futher revisions per L. Pilon's intrctions; gathered statute cites, etc.
Review and revie Factum; discussion with J. Cantwell;
Review of U.S. Liquidator's Factum and case law; assembly of Book of Authorities;
Review of Reply Factum and Book of Authorities of Liquidator;
Meetig with L. Pilon; review of varous em from 1. Pion, D. Grieve; review of additiona
cases and arguments of D. Grieve; prepare for appearane;
Prepare for Reliance motion; various emai with D. Grieve, J. Grout re: hearig;
Attendance at hearig; meetig with L. Pion and J. Grout; prepare for followig day;
Prepare for and attend motion before Justice Campbell; review and prepare submisions; review
case law;
Prepare submisions; attend motion before Justice Campbell;

FEE SUMMARY

FEES
Professiona Services

Goods and Servces Tax on Professional
Services

CAD $55,00.00
2,750.00

(

Page2of4
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CHARGES SUMMAY

Description
Photocopies
Tota Charges

Goods and Services Tax on Charges
Total Charges and Tax on Charges

Taxable
513.25
513.25

/~;;

Non - Taxable Total
513.25

0.00 513.25
25.66

CAD $538.91

DISBURSEMENTS SUMRY

(

Descption
Agents' Fees

Book Bindig¡ Binders
Delivery ¡Mairoom
LexiNexi Search

Quickw Search
Westlaw Research
Tota Disbursements

Goods and Seces Tax on Disbursements
Total Disburements and Tax on Disbursements

55968vl

Taxable
40.00
25.57
68.40
7.89

234.93
87.91

464.70

Non - TaxaWe TotM
40.00
25.57
68.40
7.89

234.93
87.91

0.00 46.70
23.24

CAD $47.94

Page 3 of4



INOICE SUMMARY

Invoice No. 4793880
Re: Representative Counel

Taxable Non-Taxable

0.00Professional Services

GST on Professiona Servces

Charges

GST on Charges

Disbursements

GSl on Disbursements

55,000.00

513.25 0.00

464.70 0.00

AMOUNT DUE

(

STIjïOIT LU

El1i Pion

Disbursements and chrges may not have be poste at the date of th account

Please quote our File number and/ or Invoice numr when makg payment
Accounts are due when redered. Interest at the rate of 1.30 percent per anum
wil be chrged for amounts unpaid 30 days or more.

Payment can be wired to:
Stieman Ellott LLP
c/o Candia Imperial Ban of Commerce

.199 Bay Street
Commerce Cour West

Mai Brach, TORONTO, M5L IB9
Transit #: 0002, Swif Coe: OBCCATT Ban Code 010
Cadian Dollar Account #: 87-12816
U.S. Dollar Account #: 04.92019.

H you wish furter inctons please contact us at (416) 869-7728.

5596 vl

1f)3

File No. 1261701001

Tota

55,000.00

2,750.00

513.25

25.66

464.70

23.24

CAD $58,77.BS
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Schedule "T"

Thoirßt2nQ~RiRt~l~an

James H. GrOll!
Dircet: 416-304-0557 E-mail: jgrouI(fiitgl:ca

FileNo.: 1267-001

May 29, 2009

VIA COURIER

Reliance Insurance Company
c/o KPMG Inc.
Commerce Court West
199 Bay Street
Suite 3300, P.O. Box 31
Toronto, Ontario

M5L 1B2

Attention: Elizabeth Murphy

Dear Elizabeth:

Re: Representative Counsel ~ Post Liquidation Interest

I enclose revised accounts as requested by you.

Yours very truly,

TJioritonGroutli'innigan LLP

(':d:"':r::::~d~::=)

JamesH. Grout

JHG*pt
EncIs.

Siiin~ ,).20°1 C:111;idi,ui PilÓfir Towel', 100 \X/ellington Sr. \\/esf) p.o. Box .321), Tonni!o-J)nmíninn Cenrn\ TorODi-n, Cai\,;ida MSI': II.:?

Phon,,: (,pii) .l0..i-ieii(, l';lX: ('1'(,) :¡.-j'qi:i \\'\Iiv.i:g(c:i

ThorntonGroutFinnigan LLP



/tot.

Th 0 rn to n G ro u tFinniganLLP

Reliance Insurance Company - Canadian Branch, in Liquidation
clo KPMG Inc.
Suite 3300, J 99 Bay Street, r.o, Box 31
Toronto, ON M5L 1B2

Attention: Elizabeth Murphy Invoice No.
File #:

January 26,2009

20398
1267-001

HE: Representative Counsel - Post Liquidation Interest

..........._._..._.__.- ......_----_..-._._----------_._-_._-_._--_.._-._---_.--_.__...~~--_._.~._.__._-_._-------_._--~-----~-----~.~~_.._------

TO ALL PROFI;:SSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED HEREIN INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING
for the period ending: December 3 i, 2008

FERS

Dec-OS-08

Dec-09-08

Dec-J 0-08

Dec-I 1-08

Dec-12-08

Dec-.l3-08

Dec- i 5-08

Dec-l 8-08

Dcc-19-08

Dcc-2 i -08

Dcc-22-08

Dec-23-08

Discussions with Liquidator regarding interest issues;

El1ails with Liquidator regarding appointment as representative
counsel;

Email to Liquidators counsel and discussions with counsel for
the US Liquidator;

EmaiJs regarding appointments as representative counsel;

El1ails regarding motion for advise and direction;

Emails with Liquidator regarding appointment as
Representative counsel;

El1ails regarding motion for advise and direction;

Review draft repoit and draft notices;

Letter to Liquidator's counsel;

Review winding up and Restructuring Act;

Organize case law;

Einails regarding appointment motion;

Emails regarding appointmentmotion;

0.40 JHG

0.20 JHG

0.40 JIlG

0.20 JHG

0.40 JHG

0.20 JRG

0.40 JHG

1.20 .THG

0.20 JHG

1.00 JHG

0.60 JHG

0.20 JHG

0.20 JHO



Dco-24-08 Review caselaw with respect to creditor's right to interest
payments in liquidation;

Dec-29-08 Review casclaw with respect to the entitlement to interest in a
i iq tiidatioii;

And to all otJ1cr necessary telephone coiimiuiications,
attendances and correspondence with respect to the conduct
of this matter

Lawver
James H. Grout
Sara-Ann Wilson

Hours
5.60
2,50

Rate
$725.00
$225.00

'l'otlll rices
GSTouFees
Toüil Fees andGST

DIS BURSElvJ Ji~NTS

Pliotocopies

'l'otal 'faxablc Disbursements
GST on Taxable Dìsbiirsemciits
Total'kNolll'äxäble Disbui'scments

Totál Disbui\§CfIlCJitsandGST

TOTAL N()W DUE

THORN'rON GROIJT FINNIGAN LLP

Per: James II. Grout

F.&O.r¡,
GST1I870J21OJ9RT
· OST Exempi

1,00

1.50

Amount
$4,060.00

$562.50

$4,622,50
$231.13

$2.50

$2.50
$0.13
$0,00

Jros

SW

SW

$4,853.63

$2;63

S4,856.26

1,,,1",,,, . I:ayipciil due UPOI1 !('c('iljL AllfdìsliurseíiCnlS 1l(llpO$Wd Loyour uccoiint Oil lhedutcofthisstatenicntwiH be bilcdliHer, In aCCQrdtU1ccwÎLh
SectionJ) 01" riie Solicitor'sAcl, interest will Iiechargedat the r'ite of 4.00% per annum on unpaid fh:s,chiirgesQr.disbursenienL'icalculatcdfrom u date
thai is one ni()tli aner ihis Slutcnientis delivered.

ThorntonGroutFinni ganLLP
Suiie 32(JO, ion Wellington 51, Wesl, t';o. Box 329, ToroniQ-Dcmiini\)i! Cç'f1re, Toronlo, C;iniida M5K I K1

Tct(4t6)JQ4-16Ifi Fax:(41(i304-131.i lDX'(i WWi",tgl.ça



Th 0 rn to n G ro u tFin niganLLP

Rcliaiicc Insurance Company - Canadian Branch, in Liquidation
clo KPMG Inc.
Suite 3300, 199 Bay Street, P.O. Box 3 i
Toronto, ON M5L i B2

Attention: Elizabeth Murphy Invoice No.

File #:

RE: Representative Counsel - Post Liquidation Interest

/0&

February i 8, 2009

20557
1267-001

TO ALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED HEREIN INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING
for th e period ending: January 31, 2009

FEES

.Jan-05-09

Jan-09-09

Jan-l0-09

.Jan-12-09

.Ian- 13-09

Jaii-14-09

.Jan-20-09

Jan-22-09

.Ian-24'-09

Jan-25-09

.Jan-26-09

Jan-28-09

Jan-29-09

Review jurisprudence regarding creditors' right to interest in a
liquidation;

Eiiails regarding appointment motion;

Emails regarding the appointinent of Representative Counsel;

Emails regarding appointment motion;

Review facta for appointment motion;

Emails regarding appointment motion;

Discussions and emails with L. Pilon;

Discussions with D. Grieve;

Lettcr to counsel regarding terms of appointmcnt;

Review case law;

Email fi'om L. Pillon;

Emails regarding appointment motion and review interest
calculations;

Einaíls and Order;

Emails regarding appointment order and scheduling;

1.00 sw

0.40 JHG

0.40 JHG

0,20 .JHG

0.80 JHG

0,60 JHG

0.40 JHG

0,20 lHG

0.20 JHG

2.20 lHG

0.20 JHG

1.20 JHG

0.60 JHG

0.40 JHG



10::

And to all other necessary telephone communications, attendances
and correspondence with respect to the conduct of this matter

Lawyer
James 1-1. Grout

Sara-Ann Wilson

Hours
7.80
1.00

Rate
$800,00
$225,00

Amount
$6,240.00

$225,00

Total Fees

CST on Jiees
Total Fee.) and GS'I'

$6,465.00
$323.25

$6,788.25

HisnURSElVlENTS
Photocopies
SWtiOllCl'y/Supplies

$168,00
$9,87

rrotalTaxablc DìsburSClllCiits

eST on 'I'axable Ilisbul'sements
Totál ~'NOilraxable llsllurselïcllts
'I'()fallJislHlrsempnts an(l CS')

$177.87
$8.89
$0.00

$186.76

1"01'1\1, NOWDlJlD $6,975.01

THORNTON GROUT FINNIGAN LLl)

~~
Per: Jnnies II. Grout

e,&OJi-
OST liS70421039Úl

~GST'Exelijl)i

Terms; .' PayniQlld,uc "pun rccdpL )\iiy diSlllrscl1icnis no! pò*d lù your ¡lèC(JlItIOIl Ihe date of thisstalciiicill will bc billedliler, In accordance with
Scçtioii J50f ThcS()!icitor'St\t,ílitcrcst will heçhilr&cdaiihc niicor 4.00% per¡lIlilni \1l1l1nlXiid rees, charges or disbursemenls calculaiedlì'Ol1 adate

that. Ì5QII e 'Il" ii i hu ri cr ili is Si alcinen tis,IdjYCTcd:

ThorntonGroutFinniganLLP
Suiic)20q~_ ion \V-cllinglml St. \Vest. f',f), r30x. 32_9, 'roniIJlo.,f)Ol1iliioli.Ccntrc, Torouh.\C¡inada,M5K,tK7

Tcl;(4IÓ)3()'¡,IÓIÓ Fa\:.116)304.1313 TDX:64 WW\I'.igtca



Th 0 rn to n G ro u tFinniganLLP

Reliance Jnsurance Company - Canadian
Branch, in Liquidation
c/o KPMG Inc,
Suite 3JOO, 199 Bay Street, P,O. Box 31
Toronto, ON M5LJ B2

Altention:

March 16, 2009

Elizabeth Murphy Invoice No.
File #:

HE: Representative Counsel -Post Liquidation Interest

- .._--_..__.~..._._-----_..__._---_._...._..._-_.._._---._----'-_._._._-~-_._-------------_._--..- ._~.__..----~......~~.....----_._~._~.. _..~

/0ll

20691
1267-001

TO ALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED HEIUi:JN INCLUDING TIlE FOLLOWING
for the period ending: March 13,2009

FEES

Feb-05-09

Fcb-10-09

Feb-J2-09

Fcb-13..09

Feb-16-09

Fcb..18-OC)

Feb-I 9-09

Feb-22-09

Feb-23-09

Discussions with clients;

Review caselaw with respect to post-filing interest claims;

Met with client; review interest calculations;

Emails regarding pending motion;

Emails with counsel regarding pending motion;

El1ails regarding pending motion;

Review motion record by the Canadian liquidator; research
caselaw regarding the entitlement to interest in a liquidation;

Research caselaw regarding the payment of interest in a
liquidation where there is a surplus;

Letter to counsel regarding case law and emails;

Research caselaw with respect to the distribution of surplus
funds in a liquidation;

Research the separation of U.S. and Canadian estates for the
purposes ofliquidation; research the application of s. 95 of the
WURA to insurance companies; review motion record ofthe
liquidator with respect to its recommendations for payment of
interest;

Emails with counsel regarding pending motion;

0.20 JUG

0.30 SW

1.60 JHG

0.20 .lEG

0.20 JHG

0.20 JHG

2,20 SW

3.00 SW

0.40 JHG

1.00 sw

1.80 sw

0,20 JHG



Feb-24-09 Emails regarding interest calculations;

Review caselawwìth respect to claimants entitlement to
interest çlUdllow their claim is to be calculated;

Feb-2(i-09 Continue drafling memorandum with respect to various issues
regarding claimants' entitlement to interest;

Fcb-27-09 Emails regarding interest calculations;

And to all other necessary telephonecommunìcations,.attendances
and correspondence wîth respect to the conduct of this matter

Lawver
JanicsH. Grout
Sura-Ann Wilson

Hours
3.40

10,40

Rate
$800~00
$275,00

'T'otal Fees
GST' on FCCN

Total Fêes ànd GST

1)lS rnJH.'§JCMEN'I'S
l3ìiidíng

COl1iíJiitelReséärcb

Totäl Tax~,blel)isburscmi:lîts
GST on. TaxabIc Di$burscmcitts
'I'oWi 'IrNonTaxable Disbursements
'l'otalllisJ)unwrnentsaiidGST

TOTAL NOW DUB

TIIO.RNTüN GROIJTFINNIGAN LLP

.Per: .James H. Grout

E.&OJ:.
CiSTII87(H1IOJ9RT
*CìST Exempi

0.20

1.60

0.50

0,20

Amount
$2,nO.OO
$2,860.00

$5,580.00
$279.00

$4.20
$377.44

$381.64
$19.08
$0.00

/to9

THG

SW

sw

JHG

$5,859.0Q

$400.72

~l.22.a~

'fenns: l'uymclH di1elipnii rcC(,ipL Any disblirSCilGll(SIlQlposledto )'ollÍ'uceoiiiiioii thcdutc of this stäte(llelit wil1li.e billedlàtcl, In ¡lCeördance with
Scclioii J50fThe SolieiIM', Act, iiit(;l'oslwilI bcehn.l'ged aiiheniio ot4.00% pcranl111111 on uiipaid fccs.diargcs or dislilirscl1cntsculCtlliitcd from a dale
thaI is onl. iíiollthnftel this Statcinelllùddivclcd.

ThorntonGroutFinniganLLP
Suiic .1200,100 Wdlìl1glOlLStWc,i, p,O, Box 319, Toroulo,\)olliiiíoii CúlHrc, TOrolLlo, C"iioda M5K IK'I

Tcl;(4l6)J04'1616Fiix'(~¡6)JO'HJ 13 TDX;64 www,igtta



Thornton GroutFinniganLLP

Reliance Insurance Company - Canadian
J3nmch, jn Liquidation
c/o KPMG Inc.
Suite 3300, 199 Bay Street, P.O. Box 3 I
TOlonto, ON M5L IB2

Attention:

April 15,2009

Elizabeth MuiVhy Invoice No.
File #:

170

20862
1267-001

...............-.--..-....-.-..---------____..____.__~.......d___....__.,....._...._._._._..._..__________.___.__._.___._____________~.__~___.~__._.__._~.~_____~_.____.~._.,__._......~...___..._

RE: Representative Counsel - Post Liquidation Interest

TO ALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED HEREIN INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING
1'01' the period ending: March 3 i, 2009

FEES

1V al'-03-09

Mar-04-09

¡\¡ll-06-09

1V ar-09-09

Mar-11-09

Mar-J 2-09

Mal- J 6-09

Mar-18-09

Mal-22-09

Mcll-23-09

Mal-31-09

Read and consider affidavit of Arthur Mullin; revise
memorandum with respect to various issus;

Revise memorandum with respect to the relative entitlements to
a surplus in the estate; review motion materials served by the
Canadian liquidator and affidavit of A. Mulln;

Revise memorandum with respect to the relative entitlements to
surplus in the estate;

Email regarding pending motion;

Discussions with Liquidator's counsel regarding interest and
other issues;

Emai Is regarding releases;

Email regarding motion;

Email regarding interest calculations;

Review interest calculations and various scenarios;

Discussions with D. Rosenbaum regarding interest issues;

Review Liquidator's factum and case law;

Read and consider factum and book of authorities ofthe
liquidator; research caselaw with respect to distribution of a
surplus in liquidation proceedings; discuss draft factum with .T

1.20 SW

1.30 SW

0.40 SW

0.40 ,THG

0,60 ,THG

0.20 JHG

0,20 JHG

0.20 JHG

1.20 JHG

0.40 JHG

3.00 ,THG

6.00 SW



Grout; draft factum for 111ötion returnable ApriI 16-17;

And to all other necessary telephone C0l1il111liications, attenclancesand
correspondence with respect to theconcluct of this matter

Lavvver
JamesH. Grout
Sara-Ann vVilson

Hours
6.20
8.90

Rate
$800,00
$275.00

Total Fees
GST on Fees
'r()üil Fees and GST

ÐlSB lJRS JiMEN'rS 

Computer ,Research
PllOtocopies

Total, Taxa hIeD islnirsemeiits
GST 011 Taxablc Disbursements

'rotal ;\'Nonl~axable Disbursements
'l'tlal Disbulsements and CST

TOTAL NOW DUE

THORNTON GRO(J'r'FINNIGAN'.LLP

Pet: Sanies II. Gi'out

E,&ÙE,
G~rr1!87042 ¡OJURT

*GST ExcinlH

Amount
$4,960.00
$2,447.50

$7,407.50
$370.38

$6.37
$5~,3.~Q,

$580.13
$2~tOi
$0.00

/ ::/

$7,777.88

$609.14

~~t1.1)~

'ldtrnis: PtlYllelH clue upon receipt Anydishurscrnel1tsnü! postcdiO yoiiriiccriintontlwd¡tle o(lhissllilenicnl ",UtI1'" hìllcd Ja!tr, " in nC,cordal1cc with

ScctionJ:iùfTlic;)oliGilOr's/\cl, intel'cSi will bcchargcdatihcrnteof4,QOiy.,pcr ;lIl1iinli li!piiírÍlèes, ehurgesor (lishurseiicriisculcLiluicd fn:i11 udaie

¡hiiUs (inC rmiiiili ¡¡ner ¡hi, Slltclùciii is delivered, "

ThortitonGroütFíniiÌgailLLP
SliilG 3200; 100WclliiiglOn 51. Wosl,I',(), Ilo.~ 31.9, Torollto,J)OlOiiiioll Ci:JllC, l'OI,GII(O, Caiiada M3K li(7

'rcl:(41(¡)~Ü'.i iiI (j 1"ix(4 j (i)304.I3I)TDX,64 www,tgf'ça



1::;)

Thornton GroutFinniganLLP

Reliance Insurance Company - Canadian
Branch, in Liquidation
c/o KPMG Inc,
Suile 3300, 199 Bay Street, P,O. Box 3 i
Toronio, ON M5L i B2

May 15,2009

Atteniion: Elizabeth Murphy Invoice No.
File #:

21077
1267-001

-_.._"._-_..~'-~ ~'..'~ ........_......_-...-....~_ _..~......._~_..h~~..~__~,~.~...._..,...~~_____~~.~~...._._,_._._....._.~_________. _.~__.._._______...__.._ .___._____..___.______..____.____.__.___.__~_____~___...____._.....__....,,~._~_._.~.____.___.

RE: Reprcsentative Counsel - Post Liquidation Interest

TO ALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED HEREIN INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING
for (he period cnding: April 30, 2009

FEI~S

Apr-01-09 Discussions with L. PilJon and letter to counsel; discussions
with D. Rosenbaum;

0.60 JHG

Emails fi'OIl counsel; 0.20 JHG

Revise factum, continue reviewing caselaw; review and
consider article by J. Sarra regarding inherent jurisdiction of
the court;

3.50 SW

Apr-02-09 Emails regarding factums; 0.20 .THG

Review correspondence fi'om S. Wilson with respect to
preparation of factum and service of motion materials;

0.20 DN

Discuss factum with J. Grout and D. Nunes; 0.30 sw

Apr-04-09 Review case law and cmails with counsel; 3.00 JHG

Review correspondence from J. Grout with respect to service of
draft factum on L. Pilon, counsel for under limit claimants;

0.10 DN

Apr-05-09 Revise factum and emails with L. Pillon; 2.60 JHG

Send correspondence to L. PíUon, counsel for under limit 0.10 DN
claimants, attaching draft factum of over limit claimants;

Apr-06-09 Finalize factum; 1.60 JHG



Apr-09-09

Apr-1 0-09

Apr-12-09

Apr-! 3-09

Apr-14-09

Apr-15-09

Apr-l 6-09

Apr-17-09

Review factum of under claimants and over claimants and make
revisions to latter and discuss same with J. Grout; discuss
service of motion materials with S. Wilson; prepare materials
for service aiidserve same;

Discuss finalizing Factum and Brief of Authorities with D.
Nunes;

Emails regarding Reply Factum;

Review under limit claimants factum and authorities;

Review US Liquidator's factum and authorities and reply
factum and authorities;

Review case law;

Review case law and consider arguments;

Prepare argument and review case law and statutes; emails and
discussions with counsel;

Prepare for motion returnable April 16-17,2009; review
factums and briefs of authorities of the Under-Limits Claimants
and the US Liquidator;

Prepare and attend in Court;

Prepare for motion regarding distribution of surplus; attend

court on full day motion regarding distribution of surplus;
discuss strategy with 1. Grout and assist in preparing
submissions for fOiiowIng day's argument;

Prepare and attend In court on interest motion;

Attend on motion with respect to distribution of surplus funds
in the estate;

And to all other necessary telephone communications, attendances
and correspondence with respect to the conduct of this matter

Lawyer
James H. Grout

Danny Nunes
Sara-Ann Wilson

Hours
35.80
3.90

16.40

Rate
$800,00
$300,00
$275.00

Total Fees

CST on Fees
Total Fees and CST

3.50

0.40

0.20

2.00

4.20

2.60

2.20

5.20

1.80

8.20

6.90

3.00

3.50

Amount
$28,640.00
$1,170.00
$4,510.00

/l-3

DN

SW

JHG

JHG

JHG

JHG

JHG

JHG

sw

JHO.

SW

JHG

SW

$34,320.00
$1,716.00

$36,036.00



DISBURSEMENTS
IJindíng
COTlipulcr TZesearch

Couriers
Photocopies
Transportation
Fi ling of Factum, Brief of Authorities and Affidavit of Service

Total Taxable Disbursements
GST Oil Taxabi(:~ DisbursCiiicnts
'fotal ~:Noii'f(ixabie Disbursements
'fötalDisbursemclits and GST

TO'fAL NOVV DUI~

THORNTON GROllI'.FINNIGAN.LLI)

l!ci'; .JumcsH. GJ:(lI t

i;,&O,F,
08d1'/87042 1O.19RT

· (is'! f'xcml1J

/ -:Lf

$0.45
$17,99

$106.15
$15.00
$19.05
$47.00

$205.64
$10.28

$0.00
$215.92

ru.2L.92

T"riyi,~' l'aYt11cntdiic; upnii receipt, . Anydishiii'süinentsùo! posiedioYQiir.aCCQLillOll the datc\1tthíSSHllcl1ciiLwilltehìlcdlaicn ...Inuccordmiccwilh

Sect ion 35 () i' 'nw$nl ic i ior's Act, in wrest wil1.he diurgcdat the ru i'eo fA ,00% iic~l'Ultll1l110n ünJYd id.fecs; chul'gesQl' dl$hiirsemciits 
çalciilatcd Jì'oni udaie

that is (lile 11111nil1 ¡¡nerih¡~ 81titcnlëniis dcdiverçd. ' .

ThorntonGroutFìnniganLLP
SüìUi 32M, 100Wellngtoii SL Wesi, 1',0, Box 320, Toroli!o-Piiirlìirìí¡iiCel1irc, Tóroll!n, Callaû" M5K1K7

l'el:(416)304.161G 1"""('116)304-1313 TDX:64 www.!gLea


